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Highlights

Business and portfolio highlights:
¢ £20m raised in a placing with new and exishing investors
» Partnership agreements signed with The University of Nottingham and Swansea University
» tnvestment Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) extended with Finance Wales
e 26% Increase In the carrying value of our investments to £25 Om (2012 £19 8m)
s Cash and deposit balances totalling £21 3m (2012 £5 9m)

» Five new portfolio companies started in the year (Proflu, Extraject, PH Therapeutics,
Wound Genetics and Rhedyn)

+ £2 6m invested i the portfolio companies by Fusion (2012 £2 9m)

s £9 5m nvested in the portfolio comparues by third party investors (2012 £10 Om)

Post year end highlights:

o Diurnal's lead drug Chronocort’s successful progression of Phase Il trals




Chairman’s Statement

| am delighted to present our results for the year ended 31 July 2013 This has been a good year for the Group, we raised £20m
in a placing in April, signed new university agreements with the Universities of Nottingham and Swansea, extended our excellent
co-investment MOU with Finance Wales for a further five years, started five new portfolio companies and grew the carrying
value of our investments by 26% to £250m (2012 £198m) Although revenue and portfolio returns were lower at £3 0m
(2012 £4 8m) and profit, excluding subsidiary spin-out costs and amortisation, was reduced to £1 4m (2012 £3 2m), this has
been a year of significant change for the Group [n addition to this, post year-end one of our key life science companies announced
the successful progression of its Phase Il Chronocort trials, a positive conclusion to these trials in 2014 will be a significant event
for the Group

It 15 well acknewledged that the UK needs to maximise the commercial benefit of the extraordinary science that emanates from
its world-class universities We believe that Fusion, with its access to some of the UK’s leading research-intensive universities,
1s well placed to generate some cf the high technology growth businesses of the future

Our unwersity partnership model, extensive expenence in business building, and IP sector expertise enables us to identify
innovative research that has the potential to be a high value business that will benefit our shareholders, the university and
ultimately UK plc With over £20m of funds, four excellent universities, established relatronships with a number of key co-
investment partners and a growing and diverse portfoho of exciting companies, we believe we are well placed to fulfil this vision

Cur priority In the year ahead 1s therefore to continue to focus on the growth of the pertfolio and we ook forward to the
year with confidence

Finally, | would ke to thank all our stakeholders, including our university partners, investment pariners and employees at both
Group and portfolio level, for their unstinting support during the year | was also delighted to see that dunng the year, our CEO
Dawvid Baynes was awarded Executive Directar of the Year in the Small Cap Awards, spenscred by the London Stock Exchange and
others, which recognises the excellent leadership David has demonstrated over the last seven years in buillding Fusion

Q/W

Doug S1dge/ CBE
Chairman




Chief Executive’s Statement

This has been another strong year for the Group, as we expanded our university base, increased our avallable investment
funds and accelerated the growth in the value of our portfolio

£20m placing

In Apnl 2013 we were pleased to announce we had successfully raised £20m through a placing with existing and new
institutional investors The placing provided Fusion with the funding to

* access additional world class IP from an expanded university base,
s ensure the Group has the financial strength to invest further in its key portfolio companies, and
¢ continue INvesting in establishing new companies out of its expanded pipeline

Growing umversity base

At the same tme as the placing, we announced that we had expanded our university base with the signing of agreements
with The University of Nottingham and Swansea University

These new agreements complement Fusion’s existing equity-based university agreements with Sheffield and Cardiff, by prowiding
Fusion with access to IP, but without having to make on-going or equity-based payments This structure provides a fiexible
partnership for both parties, and enables the university to access Fusion management and funds, while Fusion gams access to
that uruveraity’s 1P, without tying up equity or contractual service fees

It also enabtes Fusion to generate more start-up companies per annum and utilise our central resource more effectively The
new agreements allow for co-investment by IP Group, in line with the existing [P Group co-investment agreement

The University of Nottingham

Nottingham 15 one of the UK's top 10 universities, with centres of exceflence in aerospace, advanced manufacturing, energy
and biomedical imaging 1t has over 40,000 students on its three campuses In the UK, Malaysia and China and as a member
of the Russell Group 1s recognised as one of the UK's leading research-intensive universities 1n 2012 1t generated over £100m
in research grants and after the most recent Research Assessment Exercise (RAE) results in 2008, 1t was ranked 7th in the UK for
its research excellence, according 10 the research power rankings produced by Research Fortright

Following the RAE results, 90 per cent of all research at The University of Nottingham was classified as of an ‘international
standard' and 60 per cent as 'world-leading’ or ‘internationally excellent’ tn 2008 The Unversity of Nottingham was named
Entrepreneurnial University of the Year

The University of Nottingham has a well-established technology transfer office, with close links with its acadermic community
To date the university has been involved in over 40 spin-out related companies and has a current portfolio of 30 spin-outs, of which
16 have products in the marketplace

Swansea University

We are delighted to expand our operation 10 Wales through the addition of Swansea University to our university portfolio
Established n 1920, Swansea University 1s a research led university In the latest RAE, 85 per cent of its staif submitted for
assessment were classified as producing research of an internattonal quality or above and almost 50 per cent as “world-class”
or “internationally excellent” It has a number of excellent research departments, including the College of Engineening, which
received a 5 QS star rating for the excellence of its teaching, the highest achievable Its newly bullt Institute of Life Sciences
15 one of the premier research facilities In Wales and the largest university campus investment by the Welsh Government The
University also has a well-established technology transfer office

Since the announcement of these new partnerships, Fusion has been working with the Universities to identify the first
potential investment opportunittes and expects to be announcing its first new investments in Notungham and Swansea
over the next six months

Although we are currently completing the integration of our newly established partnerships, Fusion remains committed to
adding additional universities to its partnership portfoho in the longer term




Chief Executive’s Statement continued

Extension of the Finance Wales investment MOU

Following on from the successful investment MOU signed between the two companies 1n 2007, the new MOU continues the
co-investment strategy for investing in opportunities ansing from Fusion's P pipeline agreements with its growing portiolio of
Welsh universities

This agreement provides Fusion with access to substantial additional funding for s portfoho of companies and endorses the
success of the ornginal agreement To date Finance Wales has made 26 investments alongside Fusion totalling £4 Sm in Fusion
portfohio companies

Portfolio highlights

We continue to have a well-balanced portfolio of more than 20 companies, in a range of engineenng, nanctechnoiogy, software
and medical sectors The companies are at varying stages of matunty, growth and profitabiity and mine of the leading companies
in the portfolio are descnbed below

Diurnal ~ drug development
Diurnal, our drug development company, spun-out from The University of Sheffield now based in Cardiif, had another busy and
extremely successiul year, with significant progress made towards approval of its lead product Chronocort

The majority of the year was spent progressing Chronocort through its Phase |l trial and post year end in September 2013, Diurnal
passed a key landmark when It announced the tnal had successfully completed the pharmacokinetic part ¢f its Phase |1 CATCH
(Chronocort As Treatment for Congenital adrenal Hyperplasia) clinical study Chronocort 15 a modified release therapy that delvers
hydrocortisone 1n a manner that mirmics the body’s natural 24-hour hormone cycle, thus combating diseases caused by cortisol
deficiency Diurnal’s novel approach to drug defivery has the potential to significantly improve the lives of patients suffering from
diseases such as congenrtal adrenal hyperplasia and adrenal insuffictency

The CATCH trial 1s a Phase |l study in patents suffening from congenital adrenal hyperplasia and 1s being run by the National
Institute of Health, Maryland, US under a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement

Chronacort has already receved two related orphan drug designations from the European Medicines Agency, which afford ten
years of market exclusivity after the grant of marketing authorisatton in Europe

Pharmacokinetic data from the first part of the CATCH study has been receved by Diurnal The CATCH inal will now continue until
the end of 2013 so that further data can be collected to support a Phase |ll registration study of Chrenocort The full read-out of
the CATCH study 1s expected during the first quarter of 2014, and subject to a successful outcome, Diurnal would then progress
to a Phase !l tnal

Fuston holds a 43% {undiluted) shareholding in Diurnal

Phase Focus — software/engineering

Based in Sheffield, Phase Focus has developed a novel ‘Virtual Lens’ which 1s a digiial replacement for the conventional image-
forming ophics used In imaging and microscopy As well as eliminating the imitations and aberrations of conventional lens-hased
instruments, It can be exploited to visualise and gquantify numerous specimen attributes such as surface topography, thickness
and refractive Index variations, or electric and magnetic field phenomena Its current products include an Ophthalmic Lens Profiler
that can measure soft contact lenses with unprecedented levels of resolution and accuracy, and an optical rmicrascope used for
stain-free )Imaging of biclogical cells

In February 2013, Phase Focus announced that it had entered into a Licence Agreement with Gatan, Inc (“Gatan") Gatan 15
the world’s leading manufacturer of instrumentation and software used to enhance and extend the operation and performance
of electron microscopes The Licence Agreement provides for joint development of a range of products, including a Phase Focus
Virtual Lens “add-on” product for existing electron microscopes Once fully developed, Gatan will market the product through its
worldwide sales and distribution network

Fusion holds a 35% (undiluted) shareholding in Phase Focus




Seren Photonics — efectronics

Seren Photonics's revolutionary new light emitting diode {LED) nanotechnology, developed by Professar Tao Wang from The
University of Sheffield, has been shown in tests to greatly increase the efficiency of conventional phosphor-converted white LEDs
and enable ultra-high bright green LEDs The ground breaking nanotechnology can be deployed to significantly reduce ‘droop’ n
conventional LEDs which means they can be run much harder and so reducing the number of die required per luminawe It also
means that the ‘Green Gap' could be closed enabling efficient pico-projectors, destined for inclusion in future mobile devices such
as cell phones and much more efficient colour-mixed white LEDs tn simple terms, Seren’s technology means that either for a given
power consumption, much brighter LED lamps can be manufactured, or that for equivalent light output, the power consumption
of LED lamps can be significantly reduced

High brightness (HB) LEDs are set to replace incandescent lamps as governments around the world bring in legislation banning the
manufacture and sale of incandescents and concerns increase about the poor light quality and environmental contamination fears
from compact fluorescents The rate of adoption 15 expected to accelerate as the brightness of HB LEDs increases and the cost of
manufacture reduces

Seren’s technology 1s targeted at the fast growing $13bn white light HB LED markets, such as back lighting for laptops and TVs,
signs and displays, as well as domestic, architectural and street lighting

Fusion holds a 40% (undiluted) shareholding in Seren

Magnomatics - engineering

Our Sheffield-based electnc motor company, Magnomatics, develops high torque magnetic transmissions and ultra-compact
magnetically-geared motors and generatars The technology uses magnetic fields with high-powered permanent magnets to replace
the meshed teeth that normally transmit mechanical power in gear systems The magnetic fields eliminate the friction of contacting
parts As such, the super quiet, compact technology requires minimal maintenance, no ol lubncation and the gears can't be “stripped”
through miss-use The product has the potential 1o offer new engineering possibilities ranging from efficient, gearless generators for
wind turbines, to lighter and mare compact motors for hybnd vehicles

In November 2012, Magnomatics successfully raised £2 5m to develop its novel products for the hybrid and electric vehicle market
It 1s active it a range of industnes, including renewable energy, automotive, aerospace and defence, and has industnal development
contracts with some of the world's largest transportahon/engineering companies for its PDD system

Fusion holds a 39% (undiluted) shareholding in Magnomatics

Asalus Medical Instruments — medical devices

Cardiff based Asalus Medical Instruments (“Asalus”), 1s developing a range of inovative medical devices that aim to improve the
safety and efficiency of laparoscopic surgery Laparoscopic surgery is a modern surgical technigue n which operations In the
abdomen are performed through smafl incisions, as compared to the larger Incisions needed in traditional surgical procedures
There are several benefits to conducting laparoscopic surgery and, as a result, the number of procedures conducted using this
technique has grown rapidly over recent years

Over two million laparoscapic operations per year are now performed n the USA alone and the market for laparoscopic surgery
products 1s estimated at approximately $18bn worldwide, growing 7-8 per cent annually

Its lead product 1s Ultravisicn, Asalus's revolutionary surgical smoke clearing system for use in laparoscopic surgery, which
successfully completed its “irst-in-man’ tnal in January 2013 The randomised, controlled, comparative study was the first use
of the Uliravision device in patients, with the dual ams of assessing safety and performance The tnal assessed the use of
Ultravision in 30 participants undergoing scheduled laparoscopic gallbladder reroval at University Hospital Liandough (Cardiff &
Vale University Health Board, Wales, UK) The results demonstrated that Ultravision was effective in maintaining a clear visual field
throughout the laparoscopic procedure This was achieved without the need to deflate the abdomen or release smoke produced
during surgery inta the operating theatre environment In addion 77% of the procedures were completed without interruption
compared to less than 1% in the control group that did not use Ultravision There were no adverse events The Company 15
currently seeking CE mark approval and is targeting European launch in Q4 2013

Fusion holds a 44% (undiluted) shareholding in Asalus



Chief Executive’s Statement continued

MedaPhor — medical simulation

MedaPhor 15 a Cardiff based global provider of advanced uitrasound education and tramning for medical professionals
Its lead product s ScanTrainer, a vrtual reality ultrasound training simulator, which combines ‘real-feel’ haptic simulation
with real patient scans and curnculum-based interactive learning, to provide fast and effective ultrasound training in
a non-clinical environment

These educationally driven training systems refieve the pressure and costs on service delivery within hospitals and training schools,
by allowang doctors to learn on ‘real’ patients in their own time, through self-directed learning

MedaPhor has had another excellent year of growth, expanding its sales in the US and Europe, with over 8C hospitals now using
the system in eleven countries around the world Durning the year MedaPhor signed distribution agreements in Germany and
Holland and an exclusive Chinese distribution agreement with Tellyes Scientific, which will enable 1t to expand sales into the
large Chinese medical traning market MedaPhor also lauriched its second product, the TransAbdominal ScanTrainer, which it hopes
will open up the large, general medical ultrasound traiming market in 2014

In February 2013, US based Riccardo Pighucor joined MedaPhor as non-exec Chairman, to help drive expansion in the US
Fusion holds a 39% (undiuted)} shareholding n MedaPhor

12L Research - environmental testing

Based in Cardiff, 12L Research 15 a product testing and development centre for the pest control industry and agrochemicals
industry across Europe 2L has offices in Newcastle and Cardiff and has expanded its operations intc Europe, through new offices
in the Czech Republic and Spain

In October 2012, 12t acquired Baltmore based ICR Inc from MGK of Minneapolis in the USA The acquisiion significantly expands
121's European based agrochemicals, biocide and regulatory operations into the USA, the world's largest market for these services

Fusion holds a 31% (undifuted) shareholding in 121 Research

Absynth — Kifesclences

Absynth 15 a UK biotechnology spin-out company from The University of Sheffield, which has developed a distinctive, non-
conventional approach to developing vaccines and therapeutic anttbodies based on identifying novel, conserved bactenal
antigens that are essential and also antbody-accessible Bacternial infections are a major cause of death worldwide, with
microbsal drug resistance being a significant contributing factor

Absynth's target 1s Staphylococcus aureus, including its drug-resistant form MRSA, against which vaccines and antibodies of other
companies have faled to show climical efficacy I 15 believed that Absynth's approach has the potential to succeed where cthers
have previously faled and that Absynth's novel antigens offer broad potential against a range of bactenial infections and form the
basis of its pipeline that includes vaccines to prevent Clostndiumn difficiie and Streplococcus pyogenes infections

In July 2013 Absynth announced it had raised £850,000 (of which Fusion invested £450,000) to advance the Staphylococcus
aureus programme to key pre-clinical milestones The investment complements the £175,000 funding secured from the Biomedical
Catalyst to further develop Absynth’s product pipeline

Fusion holds a 43% {undiluted) shareholding in Absynth




FaultCurrent (FCL) — electrical power gnd components

FCL, which 15 founded on the invention of Dr Jeremy Hall of the Wolfson Centre for Magnetics, based at Cardiff University's School
of Engineenng, has devised a uruque magnetic fault current hmiter design that protects utility electneal distribution networks from
unankicipated power surges

The need for fault current imiters 1s driven by a dramatic Increase n electncal power system fault current levels as energy demand
increases and more clean energy sources, such as wind and solar, are added to an ageing and already overburdened national
electrical infrastructure

Deployed in an electrical network substation, a fault current imiter 1s a smart gnd system component that can help protect
the grid by absaorbing the destructive nature of faults, extending the life of existing network equipment and allowing utilities to
defer or ehminate costly equipment replacements or upgrades Estimates from Europe and the USA suggest investing in smart
grd technologies, such as fault current bmiters, can save billions of dollars 1n replacement cost, increase safety, reliability and
power quality

Unlike competing fault current imiters currently in service, FCL's unique solution 15 designed to be a completely passive,
‘fit and forget’ permanent magnet device, that requires no external power or back-up, recovers automatically when a fault 1s cleared
and requires minimal maintenance

FCL expects its first full scale system to be deployed for field testing at the end of 2014
Fuston holds a 47% (undiluted) shareholding n FCL

During the year we started five companies, however these are at the earliest, high-risk phase of their potential development and
therefore may not all progress to later stage funding rounds

Proflu 15 the latest application for Cardiff University’s Professor Chris McGuigan's ‘pro-tide’ drug delivery technology The
most effective ant-viral drugs on the market all rely upon a slow and inefficient process within the cells called phosphorylation
in order to become active aganst the virus Creating a ‘pro-tide’ can allow a pre-phosphorylated version of the drug to be
gwen, potentially resuting 1n a several hundred fold increase in potency This technology could create a highly effective
ant-nfluenza drug to combat one of the world's tiggest killers During the yearly epidemics, influenza infects around three
to five mulion people and kills around 10% of these, a greater threat anses from flu pandemics, which have occurred, on
average, three times per century for the last 300 years, where the emergence of a new wiral strain results in a death toll in
the tens of milllons

Extraject Technologies has been founded on the work of Professor James Birchall and colleagues in the School of Pharmacy and
Pharmaceutical Sciences, Cardiff University Extraject exploits over ten years’ experience of designing and testing microneedle
delivery systems to develop urgue medical devices and processes which could allow new pain free treatment of a range of
condittons The Extraject technology aims to offer a safe and efficacious solution to patients through precise targeting of effective
therapies to the appropriate locations in skin  Extraject 15 part-funded by a grant from the Technology Strategy Board

PH Therapeutics 1s developing novel antibody therapies to treat the rare disease Pulmonary Artenal Hypertension (PAH), a chronic
condition with high levels of mortality Based on the research of Dr Allan Lawrie, The University of Sheffield, PH Therapeutics is
developing therapeutics which address the underlying causes of the disease by blocking the action of proteins that play a key role
in the development of PAH PAH 1s caused by both constriction and thickening of the pulmonary arteries  Current drugs releve
symptoms by dilating the narrowed blood vessels but they are unable to reverse the progress of the disease because they do
not address the tissue changes that cause thickening of the vessel wall PH Therapeutics Is developing a new class of therapy
that specifically targets the cause of vassel thickening In order to both control and reverse this devastating disease This would
represent a major step forward in a disease area that 1s currently valued as a $3bn global market




Chief Executive's Statement continued

Wound Genetics 1s founded on the work of two leading academics at Cardiff University Professors Keith Harding and Wen Jiang
have discovered a unique “prognostic” gene signature that may allow patients with *hard to heal' chronic wounds to be identified
at first presentation Such eardy identification of *hard to heal’ wounds enables early referral to specialist care and avods potentially
years of ineffective and costly pnimary care treatment The test, currently in its early development phase, involves collecting
and processing a tisstre sample from the wound which 15 then used to determine the expression of certain genes indicative of
a ‘healing’ or ‘hard to heal' wound The treating doctor could then use these results to provide difierent treatment pathways for
those patients with ‘hard to heal' wounds The team is also exploning the use of the gene signature to identify novel therapeutic
drug candidates by identifying inhibitors of genes that are active in ‘hard to heal’ wounds The ability to accurately and effectively
diagnose, treat and manage wounds Is an enormous challenge for healthcare providers worldwide The annual cost of canng for
these patients in the UK 1s conservatively estimated at 5% of the total NHS budget

Rhedyn (Bladder Cancer Diagnostics) 1s based on the latest research undertaken by Professor lan Weeks and colleagues in the
School of Medicine, Cardiff University lan's previous work includes the development of chemiuminesence technotogy which 1s
used in over 50 million tests annually and was named as one of the top 100 Iife-changing discovenes of the last 50 years The
new technology 1s being used to address the need for accurate non-invasive diagnostic tests for the detection and monitering of
bladder cancer The fifth most common type of cancer, the disease often responds well to treatment but almost always recurs
meaning that patients have to endure monitoring by repeated cystoscopy which invatves the insertion of a fibre optic camera
intc the bladder through the urethra This invasive and costly technique has imited accuracy, 1s unpleasant for patients and
contnbutes significantly to the fact that bladder cancer management has the highest per patient cost of any cancer Rhedyn is
developing a highly accurate, non-invasive diagnostic test for bladder cancer (based on a urine sample) which should detect
the presence of the disease within minutes

Research pipeline potential
We continue to have extremely strong relationstups with our partner universities and the depth and scale of the research activity at
all four of cur partner universities is strong

Qutlook

As an mnovator in the field of university IP commercialisation, we continue to work closely with our four research-intensive
universities and investment partners, to ensure we maximise aur ability to create world-class businesses from university research
With a number of our exciting companies moving towards matunty we ook forward to 2014 wiih confidence

=

David Baynes
Chief Executive



Financial Review

Summary

The Group generated an operating profit (excluding subsidiary spin-out costs and amortisation) of £1,250,000 (2012 £3,042,000}
In line with expectahons the Group reports a loss before tax of £1,204,000 (2012 £505,000 profit) Closing cash and deposits of
£21,288.000 (2012 £5,923,000) have increased significantly following the £20m fundraising during the year The value of the
Group’s Investments In non-subsidiary spin-out companies increased to £24,983,000 (2012 £19,763,000)

Revenue

Total revenue and portfolio returns decreased to £3,035,000 (2012 £4,750,000) due to both a reduction in revenue and fewer
funding rounds leading to lower net fair value gains on investments

Revenue, which includes the amounts charged to non-subsidiary spin-out companies for management services provided,
licence income and income generated by consolidated companies, decreased to £540,000 (2012 £705,000) The decrease
relates to reduced revenue in subsiciaries

The net gain In the far value of nvestments amounted to £1,108,000 (2012 £3,567,000) The Group’s gains mainly arose from
valuation uphfts In five (2012 eaight} of the Group's holdings during the vear, with uplifts 1n Diurnal and Asalus being the major
components Farr value write downs and provisions were taken on three investments as we applied a critical eye to company prospects
versus funding requirements

2013 2012

£000 £000
Fair value gains 2,727 4,178
Fair value losses (1,619) (611}

1,108 3,567

The gan on disposal of subsidianes/investments of £1,368,000 (2012 £459,000) relates to the deconsolidation of Absynth and
FaultCurrent, as a result of Fusion's shareholding dropping to below 50% after funding rounds in the year

Operating expenses
QOperating expenses amounted to £4,401,000 (2012 £4,360,000) and are broken down tnto three components

* corporate operating expenses of £1,785,000 (2012 £1,708,000) reflect the cost of running the parent PLC company, together
with the university operations,

« subsidiary spin-out operating expenses of £628,000 (2012 £656,000), which are consolidated inte the Group’s results by
wirtue of Fusion’s >50% shareholding in each spin-out company Two significant deconsolidations occurred in the second half
of 2013, which may reduce the impact of consolidated costs going forward, and

» amortisafton of intangible assets of £1,988,000 (2012 £1,996,000), which reflects the charge over the Cardiff and Sheffield
IP nghts which are both being amortised on a straight hne basis over the ten-year pipeline agreements, together with an
amortisation charge for purchased patent costs within certain subsidiary spin-out companies

Investments

As at 31 July 2013 investments 1n spin-out companies amounted to £24,983,000 (2012 £19,763,000) Movement in the year
relates to additions of £2,615,000 (2012 £2,885,000), transfers of £1,497,000 relating to the deconsolidated companies less
disposals of £rut (2012 £3,457,000), with net gains in far value of £1,108,000 (2012 £3,567,000) Additiens consist of equity
rvestments, convertible loan investments, accrued interest and rolled up fees to a number of portfolio companies

The mvestments are all classified as financial assets and are held at fair value under IAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement” The Group uses the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation {(IPEVCV) guidelines to establish the
farr value of unlisted secunties



Financial Review continued

Intangible assets and Liabilities

IP rights comprise 1P, patents and licences purchased by the Group together with the IP pipelines with Cardiff University and The
University of Sheffield As cutined above, the Group's view 1 that these assets have a finite bife of ten years anc to that extent they
should be amortised over therr respective unexpired periods with provision made for any impairment when required P rights are
tested annually for impairment and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Non-current abilities totaling £2,354,000 (2012 £2,337,000) are classified as amounts owed to related parties

The Group awes amounts totaling £2,354,000 (2012 £2,277.000) o The University of Sheffield and Cardiff University in relation
to loan notes and accrued interest, for the mast part ansing from the purchase of the Group’s interest in certain spin-out companies
when the IP pipeline agreements were signed in 2005 and 2007 respectively These liabilities are only repayable in the event of an
exit of the underlying investment they relate to

Cash flows
The Group's cash balances at 31 July 2013 amount to £21,288,000 (2012 £3,923,000) These balances include £5,000 (2012
£122.000) n relation to consolidated subsidiary spin-out companies

The cash iInflow in the year amounted to £17,365,000 (2012 £1,961,000) and can be summarised as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Net cash used in operating actvities (1,908) (2,066)
Net cash used in investing activities (14) (760)
Net cash from financing actvities 19,287 4,787
17,365 1,961

The net cash used in Investing activities mamnly reflects amounts nvested In spin-out companies £2,592,000 (2012 £2,885,000),
less amounts recewved back from longer-term bank deposits £2,000,000 (2012 £2,000,000 transferred to deposits), less third
party investments into subsidiary undertakings £351,000 (2012 £nil} 2012 also included proceeds from disposals of investments
of £3,937,000

Share capital

As a resuit of the successful fundraising of £18,252,000, net of expenses, In April 2013, through the placing of new shares, the
Company 1ssued 36,499,246 Ordinary shares of 1p each The new shares issued represented 33% of the Company’s enlarged
issued share capital 105,000 Ordinary shares of 1p each were also issued duning the year in respect of the exercise of share
options, the consideration for these shares amounted to £35,000

10



Board of Directors

Doug Liversidge CBE

Chairman

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 1 December 2004 He was employed for 21 years at Briish Steel, before moving to
G W Thornton Limited as managmg dwector and subsequently chief executive He guided the company through its fletation on
the full list of the London Stock Exchange in 1987

Doug acts as a senior Industrial advisor to The University of Sheffield and was awarded the CBE i the 2000 New Year's Honours
List for services to industry He is also the non-executive chairman of Surgical Innovations ple

David Baynes

Chief Execulive

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 2 November 2004 Dawd has previously worked at Celsis International pic from its
Incorporation to its flotation on the full st of the London Stock Exchange in 1993, Toad plc (now 21st Century Technology ple),
which he co-founded and was responsible for taking the company from start-up to a full isting on the London Stock Exchange,
Whereonearth Limited, and Codemasters Limited

Stuart Gall

Commercial Director

Appainted to the Board of Fusion IP pic on 27 Apnl 2005 Stuart has expenience in both small company start-ups and pubic
companies and specialises in marketing, communications and new business development He has previously worked at British
Airways plc, The Promotions Partnership Limited, Anvil Limited and Toad plc (now 21st Century Technology pic)

Dr Peter Grant

Operations Director

Appanted to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 1 December 2004 Peter has a PhD in biochemustry from Cardiff University and has
previously worked at Genzyme UK Limited, Celltech Limited, Enzymatix Limited and Celsis plc, which he co-founded and took to a
full listing on the London Stock Exchange

David Catton

Non-executwve Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc en 1 December 2004 David was previously managing director of SUEL, The University
of Sheffield's tech transfer operation Prior to this David worked for Ford Motor Company, British Leyland, Rank Xerox Lirmsted and
Cambnidge Censultants Limited

Mike Davies

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 29 January 2007 Mike 15 Director of Phystcal and Financial Resources at Cardiff
University He has gained extensive expenience of Cardiff's technology transfer activities through his role as chairman of UC3 and
as a dwector/company secretary of the General Partner Board of the Cardiff Partnership Fund

Dr Alison Fielding

Non-execulve Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP pic on 29 January 2010 Alison is the Chief Technology Officer of IP Group pic Alson co-
founded Techtran Group Limited and was the Chief Operating Officer of Techiran when it was acquired by {P Group In January
2005 Previously, she worked for McKinsey & Co and Zeneca plc Alison holds an MBA from Manchester Business School and
a PhD in organic chemistry from the University of Glasgow

Bob Rabone

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 31 July 2008 Bob 1s Chief Financial Officer of The Umversity of Sheffield He
previously worked as part of the semor management team of the international law firm, Eversheds LLP and prior to that held
several finance director positions in both public and private organisations
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the audrted financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2013

Results and dividend

Group loss for the year after taxation amounted to £1,204,000 (2012 £505,000 profit) The Dwectors do not recommend the
payment of a dwvidend (2012 £nil)

Principal activity

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and 1s incorporated by shares in England and Wales The Company's
subsidiary undertakings are detalled n note 2 to the consolidated financial statements The Group's principal activity 1s the
commercialisation of intellectual property (IP) that is developed at uruversibes and similar establishments

Business review

The information, which 1s necessary to fulfil the requirements of the Business Review, 1s incorporated within the respective
Chairman and Chief Executive Statements

Directors
The names of the Directors who held office durning the financial year are as follows

Executive
D Baynes
P Grant

S Gall

Non-executive

D Liversidge CBE (Chairman)
D Catten

M Davies

R Rabone

A Fielding

The Company Secretary 1s R Birttes

Major interest in shares
As at 30 September 2013, the Company had been advised of the following shareholders with interests of 3% or more inits Ordinary
share capital

Name % halding
IP Group 201
Lansdowne Partners 166
Invesco 128
The University of Sheffield 125
Cardiff University 101
AXA Framlington g2
Legal & General 56

Directors’ interests in shares
The Directors at 31 July 2013 with interests in the share capital of the Company were as follows

The Company — Ordinary 1p shares 31 July 2013
D Baynes 1,333,332
P Grant 1,333,332
S Gall 1,333,332
D Liversidge (Chairman) 10,000

Apart from the interests disclosed above, no Directors held interests at any time In the year in the share capital or loan stock
of the Campany or other Group companies

The Directors’ interests in respect of options to acquire Ordinary shares are set out in the Report on the Cirectors’ Remuneration
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Financial instruments and nsk management

The Group's financial nsk managemeni objectives and policies, ncluding those relating to interest rate nisk, hquidity risk
and market pnce rnsk, are prowded In note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, along with further information on
the Group's use of financial instruments

Creditor payment policy
The Group’s policy 15 to

* establish the payment terms with supplers when agreeing the terms of supply,

« ensure that supplers are aware of the terms of payment, and

» adhere to the agreed terms

The Group's average creditor payment period at 31 July 2013 was 27 days (2012 22 days) The Company has no trade creditors

Employee participation
The Group values the involvement of its employees and keeps them informed of matters affecting them as employees and
on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group

Equal opportuntties

The Group endorses and supports the principles of equal employment opportunities It 5 the policy of the Group to provide
equal employment opportunities to all qualified individuals which ensures that all employment decisions are made, subject
to legal obligations, on a non-discriminatory basis

Disabled employees

Apphcations for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effart 1s made to ensure that the training, career development and
promotion opportunities of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with those of other employees

Political and chanitable donations
During the year the Group has made no political donations (2012 £n1l), charitable donations were made of £522 (2012 £325)

Provision of information to auditor

So far as each of the Direclors 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware Each Director
has taken all the steps that they cught to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Group’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Group will be held at 10 30am on Friday 29 November 2013 at the offices of Ashurst LLP,
Broadwalk House, & Appold Street, London EC2A 2HA

By order of the Board

David Baynes
Chief Executive
14 October 2013
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Report on the Directors’ Remuneration

This Report on the Directors’ Remuneration sets out the Company’s policy on the remuneration of Executive and Non-executive
Directors, together with details of Directors’ remuneration packages and service contracts

Remuneration Committee

For the financtal year ended 31 July 2013, remuneration policy for Executive and Non-executive Directors and the determination of
individual Executive Directors’ remuneration packages have been delegated to the Board’s Remuneration Commuttee comprising
three Non-executive Directors, one of which 1s the Non-executive Charrman

In setting the remuneration policy, the Remuneration Commuttee considers a number of factors including

* the basic salaries and benefits available to Executive Directors of comparable companies,

» the need to attract and retain Directors of an appropriate calibre,

¢ the need to ensure Executive Directors’ commitment to the continued success of the Company by means of incentive schemes, and
* the need for {he remuneration awarded to reflect performance

Remuneration of the Non-executive Directors

D Liversidge and D Catton recewve remuneration for ther services The remuneration 1s agreed by the Board fellowing
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee with a view to rates paid in comparable organisations and appointments
They did not receive any pension or other benefits from the Company, nor did they participate 1n any benus or incentive
schemes other than share options They each have a three-year service contract with the Company with three months’
notice either side After this time their appointment I1s reviewed annually

M Dawies, who represents Cardiff University, R Rabone, who represents The University of Sheffield and A Fielding, who represents
IP Group plc receive no fee for therr services and as a resutt of this do not have service contracts

Remuneration policy for Executive Directors
The Company's remuneration policy for Executive Directors 1s to

* have regard to the Directors’ experience and the nature and complexity of their work in order to pay a compettive salary
that attracts and retains management of the highest qualsty,

* lnk individual remuneration packages to the Group's long-term performance through the award of discretionary bonus
schemes, and

* provide employment-related benefits including life assurance, insurance relating to the Directors’ duties and medical insurance

Salanes and benefits

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to consider and set the annual salanes for Executive Directors having
regard to personal performance and information regarding the remuneration practices of companies of a similar size and of
industry competitors Executive Directors’ salaries were reviewed dunng the year and a 3% cost of lving increase in Executive pay
was approved from 1 January 2013
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Directors’ service contracts

The service contracts of the Executive Directors provide for six months' notice of termination Cther than the notice periods
afforded to the Executive and Non-executive Directors, there are no special provisions for compensation in the event of loss
of office The Remuneration Committee conswders the circumstances of individual cases of early termmnation and determines

compensation payments accordingly

Details of indivtdual Directors’ service contracts are as follows

Effective Unexpired term at Noctice

contract date 31 July Pernod

D Liversidge* (Chairman} 1 December 2004 n/a 3 months
D Baynes 26 January 2005 n/a 6 months
P Grant 26 January 2005 n/a & months
S Gall 1 Apnl 2005 n/a 6 months
D Catton 1 December 2004 n/a 3 months

* D Liversidge recewves a salary from the Company for his services as Charman Fees for consultancy work are paid via an agreement with Quest

Investments Limited

The Directors are required to retire by rotation once every three years All the Directors with the exception of R Rabone are required
to retire by rotation and being eligible, will seek re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Non-executive directorships

With the permission of the Chairman, the Executive Directors may accept appointments as non-executive directors Where an
Executrve Director accepts an appointment to the board of a company in which the Group s a shareholder, the Group retains the
Director's fees Fees earned for directorships of companies in which the Group does not have a shareholding will be retained by

the Director

Directors’ detailled emoluments

Detalls of indvidual Directors” emoluments who served during the year are as follows

Pension Total Total
Salary Fees contributions Benefits 2013 2012
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive

D Baynes 172,052 - 17,205 7,587 196,844 185,087
P Grant 147436 - 14,744 1,748 163,929 158,392
S Gall 147,426 - 14,744 1,886 164,066 158,498

Non-executive
D Liversidge (Chairman) 6,000 30,500 - - 36,500 35,000
D Catton 12,750 - - - 12,750 12,750
485,674 30,500 46,693 11,222 574,089 549,727

The pension contributions are paid into private pension plans nominated by the related Directors or can be included with the basic
salary During the year D Baynes chose to have accrued pension contributions amounting to £17,.205 pawd as basic salary

M Davies, R Rabone and A Frelding receive no emcluments for their role as Non-executive Directors
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Report on the Directors’ Remuneration continved

Directors’ interests 1n share options
Details of ophions held by Directors over the Company’s Ordinary shares of 1p are set out below

As at As at Exercise Earliest Expiry

31 July 2012 31 July 2013 price exercise date date

D Liversidge 50,000 50,000 335p 310712 310718
D Catton 33,333 33,333 150p 280108 280115
D Catton 50,000 50,000 335p 310712 310719

The market price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial year was 58 Op (2012 46 Op) and the range of market prices
during the year was 78 5p to 43 5p (2012 74 Op to 22 5p)

Each option will vest monthly as to 1/36th of the Ordinary shares under option on the expiry of each month following the date of
the grant until the third anniversary of the date of the grant when the option shall become fully vested Any vested portion of the
options will normally be exercisable hetween the expiry of the third month after the date of the grant and the tenth anniversary of
the date of the grant No performance conditions are required to be met Options will become iImmediately exercisable in full an the
death of the option-holder for a period of twefve months from the date of death If an option-holder ceases to be a2 Non-executive
Director of the Company for any reason other than death, his option {to the extent unexercised and unvested) will lapse On a
change of control or a voluntary winding-up of the Company, options may be exercised in full for a fixed penod Options will lapse
on the expiry of ten years from their date of grant

Until options are exercised, the option-holders have no voting or other rights in respect of the Ordinary shares under
therr options Qrdinary shares 1ssued pursuant to the Share Option Agreements shall rank par passu in all respects with
the Crdinary shares already (n 1ssue except that they will not rank for any dividend cr other distnbution announced prior
to the date of the exercise Options are not transferable nor are they pensionable

On 27 January 2005, D Baynes, P Grant and S Gall granted an option to D Liversidge entiting him to acquire 97,756 Ordinary
shares from each of them at an aggregate exercise price of £44,000 The optians can be exercised at any time prior to 27 January
2015 D Lwersidge has undertaken to the Company to indemnify it from any PAYE and employers’ naticnal insurance contributions
payable by the Group as a result of the exercise of any or all of these options

Remuneration review 2013

Following the recent fundraising an independent review of senior executive long term remuneration i1s being conducted on behalf of
the Remuneration Committee It 15 the Remuneration Committee’s intent to consult with shareholders before any recommendations
are implemented

DL

Doug Liversidge CBE
Chairman

14 October 2013
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Corporate Governance

The Board acknowledges the importance of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the “Code”) Whilst the Group 1s not
required to report on compliance with the Code since its shares are traded on AIM, every effort Is made to comply with the Code
The statement below descnibes how principles of corporate governance have been consistently complied with by the Group
throughout the year

The workings of the Board and its commuttees

The Board

The Board currently comprses five Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors and 1s responsible for the management
of the Group As disclosed on page 16, D Liversidge and D Catton have some share options in the Company, however the Board
considers them to be independent because the number of share aptions are not considered to be material R Rabone, M Davies
and A Fielding by virtue of therr roles with The University of Sheffield, Cardiff University and IP Group plc respectively are not
considered to be independent Non-executive Directors

The Board meets at least six tmes a year, setting and monitoring Group strategy, reviewing trading performance, reviewing
and agreeing on investments 1n spin-out companies and formulating policy on key 1ssues Day to day operational decisions are
delegated to the Executive Directors Key 1ssues reserved for the Board include the consideration of potential irvestments, share
1ssues and fund raising and the setting of Group strategy, City public relations and the review and evaluation of significant risks
facing the business

Bniefing papers are distributed to all Directars in advance of Board meetings All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who 15 responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for the Board as a whole In
addition, procedures are in place to enable Directors to obtain independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties if
necessary, at the Company's expense

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnses D Liversidge and D Catton The Audit Committee’s remut 1s set out in its terms of reference and
meets with the audiors at least once a year The Commuttee assists the Board in ensuring that the Group's published financial
statements give a true and fair view and that, where the auditors provide non-audit services, therr cbjectivity and independence
1s safeguarded

Due to the nature and size of the Group at present it would not be appropriate for the Company to have its own internal audit
department reporting directly to the Audit Committee

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises D Liversidge, D Catton and A Fielding When necessary non-committee members
are nvited to attend MNo Director 1s 1nvolved in deciding his own remuneration The Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Beard on the scale and structure of remuneration for senior management, including the award of
share options

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises the Non-executive Directors and 1s chaired by the Charman, D Liversidge It meets as
necessary and is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointments of Executive and Non-executive
Directors When required, it 1s the usual practice of the Nominatton Committee to employ specialist external search and
selection consultants to assist In the appointment process for new Executive and Non-executive Directors

Terms of reference
The terms of reference for the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees are available on request from the Company Secretary
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Corporate Governance continued

Relations with shareholders

Key members of the Executive Board regularly wisit institutional investors and the full Board makes itself available
to questions at all the shareholder meetings it holds The Chief Executive reports back to the Board views of investors
obtained at analysts’ and brokers’ briefings The Board will use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with
private and inshitutional investors and welcomes their participation

In addition the Group operates a website, which can he found at www fusionip co uk The website contains the information about
the Group that 1s required by AIM Rule 26 That information can be found under the section of the website headed Investors and
contains, amengst other information, details on the Group and its actvities, the Group's regulatory announcements, its Annual
Reports and Intenim Reports and details of the Group’s share price

Gomng concemn

After making enquinies, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements Further details are provided 1n nate 2 to the consolidated financial statements

Internal controls

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the nisks to which it 1s exposed The internal
control procedures are regularly reviewed on an ongoing basis to identify, evaluate and manage the significant risks faced by
the Group The procedures are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The key procedures which the Directors have established with a view to providing effective internal control are as follows

* the Board has overall responsibility for the Group and there 1s a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision
by the Board Each Executive Director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the Group's affairs The Executive
Directors meet monthly to discuss operational matters including management and technical reports, government and fiscal
policy issues, employment and information technology and cash controt procedures,

= the Directors have established control procedures in response to key risks Standardised financial control procedures operate
throughout the Group to ensure the integrity of the Group's financial statements The Board has established procedures for
authorisation of capital and revenue expenditure, and

* the Board reviews the Group's performance against detailled budgets and working capital forecasts on a bi-maonthly basis

Corporate and social responsibility

Policy statement

Fusion aims to conduct its business In a socially responsible manner, to contribute to the communities in which it operates and
to respect the needs of iIts employees and all of its stakeholders

Business review

The principal activity of the Group s the commercizlisation of intellectual property generated at its partner uriversities, manly
through the formatton of, and investment in, spin-out companies During the year the Group employed an average of 15 people
including Non-executive Directors The Group seeks to conduct its business in a socially responsible manner and endeavours to
maintain integrity and professionalism and to have due regard to all of its stakeholders, umversity partners, employees, suppliers
and businesses in which it invests

The Group actively looks for opportunities to nvest in inventions that have the potential to improve lives and the environment that
we live in This 1s shown in the current portfolio of companies which include many in healthcare and those helping to generate
clean energy through efficiency, rellabilty and reduction in greenhouse gas emissions
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In healthcare many of our companies are seeking to develop therapeutics and diagnostics across a wide range of disease/finfection
areas including cancer, MRSA and most recently Pulmonary Anerial Hypertension {(PAH) alongside those companies aiming to
imprave lives via novel approaches to drug delivery (Diurnal) and safer, more efficient medical procedures (Asalus, Medaphor}

Physical science companies are developing technology that looks o reduce energy requirements in certan processes
including light generation (Seren), various engineering applications and chemical processes One of our engineering
companies has recently Jjoined The Proving Factory, an orgamisation aiming to bridge the gap between low carbon proof
of concept prototypes and the requirements of vehicle manufacturers

Our business ethics and social responsibility

The Group seeks to conduct all of its operating and business activities 1n a socially responsible manner and, in all such activities,
far its directors and employees to maintain integnty and professionalism, to be commercial and fair and to have due regard to
the interest of 2l of its stakeholders including investors, university partners, investment partners, employees, suppliers and the
businesses in which the Group invests

Statement of the Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report, Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors’ Report and the Group and Parent Company financial
statements i accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year As required
by the AIM rules cof the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements 1n accordance
with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the
Group and Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,
for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going cencern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Parent
Company will continue In business

The Directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffictent to show and explain the Parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to
ensure that its financial staiements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open t0 them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial information sncluded on the Group’s
website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and disseminabon of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Fusion IP plc

We have audited the financial statements of Fusion IP pic for the year ended 31 July 2013 sel out on pages 21 lo 47 The fnancial
reporting framework that has been applied 1n the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s appkcable law and International
financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework thal has been applied in the
preparation of the Parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accardance wath Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Acl
2006 Our audit work has been underlaken so that vee might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to
stale to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assurne
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opiniens we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor A

As explaned more fully in the Statement of the Directors’ Respensibiliies sel out on page 19, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit, and
express an opnion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK
and Irefand) Those standards require us o comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an aught of financial statements 15 provided on the Financtal Reporiing Counctl's websile at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

o the financial statements gwe a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at
31 July 2013 and of the Group's Joss for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

* the financia! statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
tn our opiion the formation gven in the Dweclors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Wea have nothing lo report in respect of the following matlers where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in
our opinion

+ adequale accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retumns adequate for our audil have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

 the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

\QMVJ /ykmﬂ

David Morritt (Sentor Statutery Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Stat
Chartered Accountants
KPMG Leeds

1 The Embankment
Neville Street

Leeds

LS| 4DW

14 October 2013

ty Auditor
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 July 2013

2013 2012
Note £000 £000
Revenue and portfolio return
Reverue 5 540 705
Dwidend income 19 19
Change n farr value of investments 15 1,108 3,567
Gain on disposal of investments/subsidiaries 15 1,368 459
3,035 4,750
Operating expenses
- corporate operating expenses {1,785) {1,708;
- subsidiary spin-out operating expenses (628) (656)
- amortisation of infangible assets 14 (1,988) (1,996)
6 {4,401) {(4,360)
Results from operating activities 6 (1,366) 390
Finance income 10 220 177
Finance expenses 10 (58) 62)
{Loss)/Profit before taxation (1,204) 505
Taxation 11 - -
(Loss}/Profit and total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the year {1,204) 505
Attributable to
- owners of the parent (959) 669
- non-controling interests 20 (245) (164}
{1,204 505
Bastc and fully diluted (loss)/profit per share 12 (114)p 100p
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 July 2013

2013 2012

Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 17 12
Intangible assets 14 7,448 9,446
Investments 15 24,983 18,763
Total non-current assets 32,448 29,221
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 929 1,055
Deposits 17 - 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents 17 21,288 3,923
Total current assets 22,217 6,978
Total assets 54,665 36,199
Equity
Called up share capital 18 1,004 728
Share premium 18 63,529 44,486
Other reserves 19 3 125
Retained earnings (12,518} {11,848)
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 52,108 33,491
Non-coniroiling interests 20 - -
Total equity 52,108 33,421
Non-current Liabilities
Amounts owed to related parties 21 2,354 2,337
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 22 203 371
Total hatnlities 2,557 2,708
Total equity and habilities 54 665 36,199

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 October 2013 and were signed on its behalf by
the Chairman

Fusion IP plc - registered number 5275732
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 July 2013

2013 2012

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Praofit for the year (1,204) 505
Adjustments for
— depreciation of property, ptant and equipment 7 12
— amortisation of Intangible assets 1,988 1,996
- net finance income (162) {115}
- share-based payments - 32
- dwvidend income (19} (19
—gain on disposal of investments/subsidianies (642} (459
— change in fair value of investments (1,834) {3,567)
Changes in working capital
- decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 126 {442)
- decrease In trade and other payables (168) ©
Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,908} (2,066)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {12) 8
Purchase of investments (2,592) {2,885}
Proceeds from sale of investments - 3,937
Thard party investment into subsidiary spin-out companies 351 -
Cash transfers from/{to) longer-term bank deposits 2,000 (2,000}
Dmidend income 19 19
Interest received 220 177
Net cash flows used in investing activities (14) (760)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of share capital 20,035 5,026
Share 1ssue costs (748) (239)
Net cash flows from financing activities 19,287 4,787
Net increase tn cash and cash equivalents 17,365 1,961
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,923 1,962
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21,288 3,923
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 July 2013

Attributable to equity holders of the Group

Non-
Share Share Other Retained controling
capital premium reserves earnings Total Interests Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 August 2011 542 39,034 3 {12,347) 27,232 - 27,232
Profit and total comprehensive
profit for the year - - - 669 669 (164) 505
Non-controlling interest
attributable to the Group - - - (202) (202) 202 -
Issue of share caputal 186 4,783 - - 4,969 - 4,969
Share-based payments - - - 32 32 - 32
Part disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (38 (38)
Mavement in shares to be 1ssued - 669 122 - 791 - 791
At 31 July 2012 728 44,486 125 {11,848) 33,491 - 33,491
Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - (959) {959) (245) (1,204)
MNon-controlling interest
attributable to the Group - - - 289 289 (289) -
Issue of share capttal 366 18,996 {(75) - 19,287 - 19,287
Disposal of subsidianes - - - - - 534 534
Movement in shares to be 1ssued - 47 (47 - - - -
At 31 July 2013 1,094 63,529 3 (12,518) 52,108 - 52,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 July 2013

1. General information

Fusion IP plc 1s a public hmited company which 15 listed on AIM, part of the London Stock Exchange, and is incorporated and
domiciled i the UK The address of its registered office 1s The Sheffield Bioncubator, 40 Leavygreave Road, Sheffield S3 7RD

The registered number of the Company I1s 5275732

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Stering which is also the currency of the primary economic environment

i which the Group operates The financial statements are presented tn round thousands

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below

Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements principally compnse a consohdation of amounts included In the financial statements of

the following companies

Principal activity Holding Class of shares held
Fusion IP Sheffield Liruted Holding company 100% Ordinary
Fusion P Cardiff Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
Brofusion Licensing {Sheffield) Limited* Dormant 100% Ordinary
Mantelum Limited* Dormant 100% Ordinary
Resagen Limited* Orphan drug 100% Ordinary
Rhedyn Limited* Cancer diagnostics 100% Ordinary
Wound Genetics Limited* Advanced wound care 100% Ordinary
BioHydrogen Limited* Dormant 60% Ordinary
Extraject Technologies Limited* Microneedle technology 60% Ordinary
Medella Therapeutics Limited* Cancer therapeutics 60% Ordinary
PH Therapeutics Limited* Antibody therapies 60% Ordinary
Proflu Limited* Novel new pharmaceuticals 60% Ordinary
Lifestyle Choices Limited* Dormant 51% Ordinary

* Indirectly held

All companies are incorporated in England and Wales

The consolidated financial statements of Fuston IP plc have been prepared in accordance with Internatienal Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the EU The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Company financial statements

In accordance with UK GAAP and these are presented on pages 45 to 47

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of certain financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, as required by 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition

and Measurement”

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consohidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 4

25




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Change 1n accounting policies
(1) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for the first time in the year ended 31 July 2013

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations have become effective for the current financial year
These changes have noi had a significant iImpact on the Group

e |AS 1 (amended) Presentation of Financial Statements, presentation of other comprehensive income
* |AS 12 (amended) Income Taxes, recovery of underlying assets

(1} Standards, amendments and wterpretations not yet effective
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases have not yet been adopted by the EU)

* Amendments to IFRS 1 First tme adoption of IFRS — Government loans

* Amendments to IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRS — Severe hypennflation and removal of fixed dates for first tme adopters
* |FRS S Financial Instruments and subsequent amendments

* [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Staternents

« |FRS 11 Joint Arrangements

+ [FRS 12 Dusclosure of Interests in Other Entities

* Amendments to IFRS 10, 11, 12 Transitional guidance

* Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 Investment entities

« |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

* |AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits

* |AS 27 (revised) Separate Financial Statements

e |AS 28 (rewised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

» Amendments to |AS 32 and IFRS 7 Financtal Instruments, on asset and hability offsetting
* Amendments to !AS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

* Amendments to |AS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

+ |FRIC 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

* IFRIC 21 Levies

* Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

At this point 1n time it 1s not expected that these standards will have a significant impact on the Group financial statements with the
exception of IFRS10 & IFRS1L, which may impact on the criteria by which we assess which companies the Group will consolidate
The Board are aware of the effective date and are reviewing the potential impact on the Group financial statements
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Going concern

The Group’s business, together with the factors likely to afiect its future development, performance and financial posttion are
set out in the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 3 to 8 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, and its hquidity position
are described in the Financial Review on pages 9 to 10

The Group has cash and deposit balances as at 31 July 2013 of £21,288,000 The Directors have prepared and review on a
regular basis financial forecasts based upon assumpttons as to funding, investments in new and existing spin-out companies
and the realisation of assets, along with other factors known to have a significant impact on results Based upon these the
Directors have concluded that the Group has adequate working capital and cash balances to operate for the foreseeable
future and that it 1s appropriate to use the going concern basis of preparation for this financial informatten

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes

The Group's consolidated financial statements consist of Fusion IP plc and all of its subsidiaries The consoldated financial
statements exclude mtra-group transactions

Subsidiares are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control and continues
through to the date control ceases Conirol consists of the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order to
cbtain benefit from its activities, usually by holding more than 50% of the voting rights or by way of contractual agreement

The cost of acquisttion 15 measured at fair value of assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange Costs directly attributable to the transaction are expensed as incurred The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, labldities and contingent labibties 1s recorded as goodwill If the
cost of acquisition 1s less than the farr value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the statement of comprehensive income

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and labrhities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and other
components of equity related to the subsidiary Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control 1s recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income If the Group retains any interest in the previous substdiary, then such interest 1s measured at fair value
at the date that control 1s lost Subseguently 1t 1s accounted for as a spin-out investment as detailed below

Spin-out 1nvestments

Spin-cut Investments are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally accompanied by
a shareholding of less than 50% of the equity or voting nghts Spin-out investments that are held by the Group with a view to
the ultimate reahsation of capital gains are accounted for in accordance with 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments Recogmition and
Measurement” and upon initizgl recognition are designated at fair value through profit or loss This treatment 1s permitted by IAS
28, 1In which investments held by entities which are akin to venture capitalist organisations can be excluded from its scope

Didution gains and losses ansing 1n spin-out investments are recognised In the statement of comprehensive income

Dwidends receved from spin-out investments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income n the period in
which they are receved

Loan investments

Loan investments are generally unquoted loan instruments, which are convertible to equity at a future point in ime  Suchinstruments
are considered to be hybrid instruments containing a fixed rate of debt host contract with an embedded equity derivative The
Group designates the entire hybnid contract at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income on inihal recogmtion and
accordingly, the embedded derivative 1s not separated from the host contract and accounted for separately The far value of loan
instruments 1s established by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows associated with the instrument

Transactions with minonty shareholders - “econormic entity approach”

The Group apphes a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 1s deducted from equity Gains or losses on disposals to non-controfling interests
are also recorded in equity For disposals to non-controlling interests, differences between any proceeds received and the relevant
share of nan-controlling interests are also recorded in equity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Operating segments

An operating segment 1S a group of assets and operations, which are identified on the basis of internal reports that are
regularly reviewed by the Board, which analyse the Group in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
ongomng performance

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment s shown at cost less deprectation and wmparrment Depreciation 15 provided to wnte
off the cost, less the estmated residual value, by equal Instalments over the estimated useful economic lives as follows

Computer equipment - 4dyears
Office/laboratory equipment — 3 to 5 years
Demonstration prototypes - 2to 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if approprate, at each balance sheet date Gains
and losses on disposals are determuned by companng the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recogrused within
the statement of comprehensive income

IP nghts

IP nghts comprise IP, patents and licences purchased by the Group together with the IP pipelines with Cardiff University and
The University of Sheffield The Group’s view I1s that these assets have a finite life of ten years and to that extent they should be
amartised over their respective unexpired pernods with provision made far any impairment when required 1P rights are tested
annuatly for impairment and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Impairment of intangible assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for impairment annually as a matter of policy An impairment loss 1s recognised
for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount i1s the higher of the asset’s
far value less costs to sell and the value in use For the purposes of assessing mparrments, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are largely independent cash flows (cash-generating units (CGUs)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities i1s recogmised in the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred

Expenditure gn development actimbies s capitalised (f the product or process 1s techmically and commercially feasible and the
Greoup Intends ta, and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to, complete development and If the Group can measure
reliably the expenditure attnibutable to the intangible asset during its development The expenditure capitalised includes the
cost of materals, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of overheads Other development expenditure 15 recognised In
the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets inio one of the categories listed below, depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired Mone of the Group’s assets are categorised as held to maturity or avallable for sale

In respect of regular purchases and sales, these are recogrused on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchasing or sefling the asset Financial assets are derecogrused when the rights to recesve cash flows from the assets have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Spin-out investments and associated loans that are held by the Group with a view to the ultimate reafisation of caprtal gains are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the statement of comprehensive iIncome in the pericd they anse

Cost

Where the investment being valued was itself made recently, its cost may provide a good indication of farr value unless there 1s
ohjective evidence that the investment has since been impaired, such as observable data suggesting deterioration of the financial,
technical, or commercial performance of the underlying business
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Price of recent investment

The far value of unlisted securities 15 established using IPEVCY guidelines The valuation methodology used most commonly
by the Group 15 the “price of recent nvestment” The following considerations are used when calculating the farr value using
the price of recent investment guidance

« where the investment being valued was itself made recently, its cost will generally prowide a good indication of fair value,
+ where there has been any recent investment by third parties, the price of that investment will provide a basis for the valuation, and

o where a far value cannot be estimated reliably the mvestment 1s reported at cost unless there 1s evidence that the investment
has since been impaired

Other valuation techruques

Where spin-cut investments are trading profitably and cash generative there is usually no readily ascertainable value from following
the “price of recent investment” methodology In these circumstances the Group considers afternative methodologies (in the
IPEVCV guidelines, such as discounted cash fiows (“DCF") or price-earnings multiples DCF nvolves estimating the farr value
of business by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows, based on the most recent forecasts in respect of the
underlying busmess

When using the earnings multiple methodolegy, earmings befare mterest and tax (“EBIT™) are generally used, adjusted to a
maintainable level A suitable earnings multiple 1s derived from an equivalent business or group of businesses, for which the
average price-earnings multipte for the relevant sector index can generally be considered a suttable proxy This multiple 1s
apphed to earnings to derive an enterpnse value which s then discounted to reflect nan-marketability and other risks inherent
to businesses In early stages of operation

Other recevables

Other recewvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market
They are Included In current assets and comprise “trade and other recewables”, “deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” They
are carried at cost less any provision for impairment

Deposits
Deposits comprise longer term deposits held with financial institutions with an criginal matunty of greater than three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits held with financial institutions with an onginal maturity of
three manths or less

Payments on account

Payments on account are recorded within trade and other recevables and represent the transfer of funds in advance ta The
University of Sheffield held on the balance sheet of Fusien IP Sheffield Limited The payments on account are held at cost, less
any amounts transferred to investments on account of the acquisition of Interests N spin-out companies or the transfer of IP from
The University of Sheffield

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are comprised of trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are recogrused at
amortised cost Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial habilities are a reasonable approximation
of their fair value

Non-current habilities owed to related parties

Non-current liabilities owed to related parties relate to loan notes and accrued interest due to The University of Sheffield and
Cardiff Unwersity ansing from the purchase of the Group's interest in ts portfolic of spin-out companies These amounts are
repayable on the earher of the sale by Fusion of the underlying share capital in the Company, or the Company making dividend
payments, or ten years from the day of issue should the spin-out company generate a return These amounts are only payable to
the extent that any gain or dwidend Is receved by Fusion, and can be cancelled by Fusion by the return of the shares to which they
relate to The University of Sheffield or Cardiff University respectively They are recognised at amortised cost, which 1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

2 Summary of signsficant accounting pelicies continued

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Leases

Leases In which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement cn a straight ine basis over the period of
the lease

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current tax and deferred tax 1s recogmsed in the statement of
comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to 2 business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or
in cther comprehensive Income

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable or recewable on the taxable income or l0ss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantwvely enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years Current tax payable
also includes any tax hability ansing from the declaration of dividends

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amaounts of assets and liabiiities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax 1s not recognised for

« temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or habilities in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

e« temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it 1s probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

» taxable temporary differences arsing on the initial recogrition of goodwill

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and liabiihes are offset if there 1s a legally enforceabie right to offset current tax labilities and assets, and they
relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entibes, but they intend to
settle current tax liabilites and assets on a net basis or therr tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

A deferred tax asset 15 recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it 1s
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be utiised Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be reahised

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group does not operate any pension schemes for employees but makes contributions to employee personal pension schemes
on an individual basts The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due

Share-based payments

Share-based Incentive arrangements are prowided to Directors and certain employees Share options granted are valued at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and are expensed on a straight ine basis over the vesting period to
operating profit
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Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises

s fees for vanous advisory and fund management services which are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
the related services are performed and when considered recoverable, and

+ licence fees which are recognised in full upen signing once all the Group’s obligations have been completed, in accordance with
the substance of the agreement

Corporate operating expenses

Corporate operating expenses reflect the costs associated with running the central functions of the Group The costs are
contained within the Parent Company, Fusion IP pic and the two wholly owned subsidiaries, Fusion 1P Sheffield Limited and
Fusion IP Cardiff Limited

Subsidiary spin-out operating expenses

Subsidiary spin-cut operating expenses reflect the costs associated with running the early stage spin-out camparnies in the pernoad
fram when they are first incarporated through to when they have completed third-party venture capital funding which then dilutes
the Group's holding below 50% of the equity or voting rights At this stage the spin-out compary 1s then de-consolidated and
accounted for as a financial asset at held fawr value

3 Financial nsk management

In the normal course of business, the Group uses certain financial Instruments including cash, equity INvestrments and loans to
its portfolio of spin-out companies Loans to spin-out companies are treated on the same basis as equity for valuation purposes

Risk management objectives
The Group 1s exposed to a number of nsks through the performance of ts normal operations The most significant are hquichty and
market price nsk Income from surplus funds 1s dependent on market interest rates

The Group's main objective In using financal Instruments 1$ 1o promote the commercialisation of IP held by technology businesses
through the raising and investing of funds for this purpase The Group's policies n calculating the nature, amount and timing of
nvestments are determined by planned future investment activity

Due to the nature of the Group's activities, the Directors do not consider it necessary to use denvative financial instruments to
hedge the Group's exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, as these exposures have not been significant during the period
covered by this report

Interest rate risk profile of financial habilities

The Group's trade and other payables consist of short-term payables, therefore disclosures have been excluded The amounts
owed to related parties faling due after more than one year generally relates to loan notes and accrued interest due to The
University of Sheffield and Cardiff University ansing from the purchase of the Group’s interest in its portfolio of spin-out
companies These amounts are interest bearing at a rate which tracks the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)

Borrowing facilities
The Group had no undrawn commitied borrowing facilihes available during the penad

Currency exposures

The Group occasionally enters into transactions In currencies other than Sterling Any exposure to fluctuations in market
currency exchange rates 15 considered immateral from a Group perspective Therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared n relation to this nsk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

3. Financial nsk management continued

Interest rate nsk

The Group has directly maintaned special interest bearing accounts with corporate banks at variabie rates of interest related to
LIBOR These deposits are made on a daily basis with minimal balances held on current account Fixed rate deposits are placed
with corporate banks where surplus funds 1n excess of £1m exist and interest rates above LIBOR are avallable Currently no fixed
rate deposits are placed due to the small differential between interest rates on fixed rate deposits and those with instant access
The current market situation 1s constantly reviewed and fixed rate deposits will be held should interest rates improve sufficiently

It 1s estimated that the effect of a 0 5% increase/decrease In interest rates based on the average expected cash balance for next
year on profit before tax would be £87,000

The Group's cash and deposits as at 31 July 2013 amounted to £21,288,000 (2012 £5,923,000)

Liquicity nsk
The Group seeks to manage financial risk, and In particular iquidity sk, ensuring that sufficient llquidity is available to meet
foreseeable requiremnents and to Invest surplus cash in low risk instruments with reputable institutiens

Market price nsk

The Group Is exposed to nsk in respect of equity investments and loans to spin-out companies The Group seeks to mitigate
this nsk by routinely monitoring the performance of the spin-out companies The Group uses a rngorous nvestment appraisal
process prior to deciding on investment Regular spin-out company updates are provided to the Board on the status and valuation
of Investments Most spin-out companies also have a Fusion P plc Executive Director on theirr board who closely moniters the
performance of the company against strategic milestones The value of early stage technology and iife science spin-out companies
s affected by the ability to attract strategic industnal partners and venture capital institutions to invest in follow-on funding rounds,
which 1s ultimately determined by the general economic environment and the performance cof the international equity markets

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group 1s @ mixture of cash balances and equity comprising 1ssued share capital and reserves as
detalled in note 18 The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue as a going
concern In order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders The Group looks to acheve this by
endeavouring to invest In the night opportunities at the right time, bafancing cash requirernents with forecasts of future cash tnputs

The Group does not currently utilise debt within its capital structure Additonal cash and cash equivalents for operating and
investment requirements are generated through the 1ssue of new shares when required

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management duning the year

4 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

In the pracess of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are set out in note 2, the Directors have made certain judgements
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labiities within
the next financial year are descrnibed below

Valuation of unquoted equity investments

The judgements required to determimne the appropnate valuation methodology of unquoted equity investments means there 1s a
nsk of matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiities These judgements include a decision whether or not to
mmpair valuations These judgements are by nature mare subjective when investments have expenenced a period of time between
funding rounds

Valuations of unquoted equity investments are based on the last external funding round where one has taken place, otherwise
at cost, less any provision for impairment 1If the most recent external funding round establishes s valuation lower than the cost
to the Group
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Where unguoted equity Investments are trading profitably and cash generative they will be valued using either DCF or pnice-
earnings muitiples, which will be discounted to reflect non-marketability and other risks inherent to businesses in early stages of
operation The estimates included in these valuations are mherently subjective, especially where assigning non-marketability and
risk discounts to urigue companies These valuations are reviewed on a regular basis based on the trading performance of the
companies and decisions on whether to increase or impar the carrying value are reviewed by the Directors

Valuation of intangible IP nights

It 15 Group policy to test, at least annually, whether the P nights have suffered any impairment There are a number of vanable
assumptions set out In note 14 The Directors consider that for each of these vanables there 15 a wide range of reasonably
possible alternative values, which result In a wide range of fair value estmates for the IP nghts agreement None of these
astimates of fair value 1s considered more appropriate or relevant than any other As a result of this, the Directors’ view 1s that
the tP nghts should be amortised over the ten-year life of the agreement with provision made for any impairment when required

Subsidianes and sptn-out investments
At the point of investing in a new spin-out company the Directors consider the definitions of a subsidiary and a spin-out Investment
as set out in note 2 The judgements over cantral of the company are assessed through

» proportion of vottng rights held,
« power to govern policies of the entity, and

e power to appoint a majonty of board members

Whilst generally considered to be a largely non-judgemental area, the choice between subsidiary or spin-out investment has
a matenal impact on the financial statements The Directors do not congider that there have been any decisions requinng the
apphcation of significant judgement in the current period

S5 Operating segments

For the year ended 31 July 2013 and the year ended 31 July 2012 the Group’s revenue and profit or loss was derived from its principal
activity which encompasses technology transfer, company incubation and early stage venture capital The Group’s Board, which is
considered to be the Group's chief operating decision maker, have undertaken a review of the Group’s operations and its associated
business nsks and consider the performance of the business as ane reportable segment The portfolio of investments 1s reviewed with
no differentiation made based on the market sector of the company or whether the company onginated from the Sheffield or Cardiff
iP pipeline No distinction i1s made between the assessment of subsidiaries and spin-out companies

The principal actwity of the Group 1s based solely within the UK hence no geographical analysis 1s presented

The disclosures for the reportable segment 15 therefore given by the primary financial statements and related notes There are
no material differences between the segment information as presented to the chief operating decision maker, and the financial
information s presented under IFRS as adopted by the EU

6. Results from operating activities
Results from operating actiwvities have been arrived at after charging the following operating expenses

2013 2012

£000 £000

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7 12
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,988 1,996
Employee costs {see note 8) 1,019 994
Net operating leases — property 40 30
Payments to The Unwersity of Sheffield/Cardiff University for IP mining 306 315
Research, development and patent costs 433 540
Legal, professional, insurance and adwisory costs 253 205
Adrministration and marketing costs 355 268
4,401 4,360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

7 Auditors’ remuneration
Dunng the year the Group obtaned the following services from the Group's auditors

2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s audttors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 19 18
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for other services
— the audit of the Company’s subsidiary spin-out companies 2 3
8. Employee costs
2013 2012
£000 £000
Wages and salarnes 853 798
Social security costs 108 107
Pension costs — contributions to meney purchase plans 58 57
Share-hased payments - 32
1,019 994
Average monthly number of persons (including Non-executive Directors) employed
2013 2012
Number Number
Central corporate functions i4 13
Subsidiary spin-out companies 1 1
15 14

9 Share-based payments
Share option schemes

The Company has share option schemes for both Directors and certain employees Details of the share options held by Directors
are set out within the Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Each option will vest monthly as to 1/36th of the Ordinary shares under oplion on the expiry of each month following the date of
the grant until the third anniversary of the date of the grant when the option shall become fully vested Any vested portion of the
aptions will normally be exercisable between the expiry of the third month after the date of the grant and the tenth anniversary of
the date of the grant No performance conditions are required to be met Options will become immediately exercisable in full on
the death of the option-holder for a periad of twelve manths from the date of death 1f an option-holder ceases to be employed
by the Company for any reason other than death, his option (to the extent unexercised and unvested) will lapse, unless under the
discretion of the board they are allowed to continue On a change of control or a voluntary winding-up of the Company, options may
be exercised i full for a fixed period Options will lapse on the expiry of ten years from their date of grant

Until options are exercised, the option-holders have no voting or other rights 1n respect of the Ordinary shares under their options
Ordinary shares 1ssued pursuant to the Share Option Agreements shall rank parl passu In all respects with the Ordinary shares
already In Issue except that they will not rank for any dividend or other distribution announced prior to the date of the exercise
Options are not transferable nor are they pensionable
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Warrants

On 23 March 2006, as part of a £10m Side Fund Agreement, Fusion 1ssued warrants to NP1 Ventures Since this date the warrants
have changed ownership and last year we were informed that they are currently held by a private equity firm The warrants
outstanding are as follows

1,225,000 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £1 50,

1,225,000 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £1 60,

612,500 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £1 80, and
* 612,500 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £2 20

Movements and fair value
The movements relating to share options and warrants dunng the year are set out below

2013 2012
Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options warrants share ophions warrants
QOutstanding at the beginning of the period 644,999 3,675,000 699,999 -
Reinstated during the period - - - 3,675,000
Exercised during the period (105,000} - {55,000) -
Outstanding at the end of the period 539,999 3,675,000 644,999 3,675,000

105,000 share options were exercised during the year, the exercise price per share was 33 5p and the weighted average market
share price at the time of exercise was 60 9p

The far values are determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the assumptions used at the fair value
measurement date are shown in the table below

Employees Directors Dwecters Others~® Others” Warrants
Fair value at grant date 14 43p 47 24p 15 65p 47 24p 1565p 4398pto 18 83p
Share price at grant 3350p 150 00p 33 50p 150 00p 33 50p 152 25p
Dividend yield 0 00% 0 00% 000% 000% 0 00% 0 00%
Expected volatility 42 17% 18 52% 42 20% 18 52% 42 20% 18 85%
Expected life 4 years 1 5years 6 years 1 5years 6 years 2 5 years
Risk free interest rate 300% 4 46% 300% 4 46% 300% 4 28%
Number of shares under option 270,000 33,333 100,000 66,666 70,000 3,675,000

*QOthers reflects share options held by the Company Secretary and the spouse of T Atkinsen {deceased)

The expected volatility was benchmarked against the FTSE AIM All Share Index on those options 1ssued on 31 July 2010 and for
the previous options aganst an ndex of similar companies i the Biotech Index as no historic data was available for the Company

at the grant date

The fair value of any outstanding share-based options and warrants are recognised as an expense through the profit and loss
account over the relevant vesting periods The charge in the current year was £nif (2012 £32,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contirued

for the year ended 31 July 2013

10. Finance income and expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest iIncome on bank deposits 122 26
Interest ncome on loans to spin-out mvestments 98 151
220 177
Finance expenses
interest payable on loans from related parties (58} (62)
(58) (62)
Net finance income 162 115
11 Taxatton
2013 2012
£000 £000

Current tax
Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets of £4,570,000 (2012 £3,943,000) from unutilised tax losses have not been recognised as the
Directors consider there to be sufficient uncertainty over the avallability of future taxable profits from which the trading

losses can be deducted

The Directors believe that the Group will qualify for the Substantial Shareholder Exemption (SSE) and therefore no deferred

tax I1s provided for in respect of the fair value uplifts in valuation of certain of the equity investments

Corporation tax s calculated at a rate of 20% (2012 20%) of the estmated assessable profit for the period

The charge for the year can be recenciled to the (lossi/profit per the income statement as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
{Loss)Profit before tax {1,204) 505
Current tax at 20% (2012 20%) (241) 101
Effects of
— expenses not deductible for tax purposes (672) {120)
— depreciation in excess of capital allowances (1) 1
- UK research and development tax credits 16 (29)
- non taxable gains - (768}
- tax Iosses carned forward 898 815

Total tax charge
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12. Earnings per share

{Loss)/Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Waighted average number of Ordinary shares In Issue
Basic and fully diluted {loss)/profit per share

2013 2012
(£959,000) £669,000
84,142,368 66,626,200
(114)p 100p

Basic earnings per share I1s calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of Ordinary shares in issue durng the year

Diluted earnings per share i1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares according to 1AS 33 Dilutive potential Qrdinary shares include
granted share options and warrants where the exercise price (s less than the average market price of the Company's

Ordinary shares during the year

IAS 33 requires presentation of diluted earnings per share when a company could be called upon to 1ssue shares that would
decrease net profit or increase net foss per share Only options ar warrants that are “in the money” are treated as dilutive and net
loss per share would nct be increased by the exercise of such options or warrants Therefore no adjustment has been made to

dilute earrungs per share for any outstanding shares options or warrants

13 Property, plant and equipment

Office and
computer
equipment
£000
Cost
At 1 August 2012 87
Additions 12
Disposals {18}
At 31 July 2013 81
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2012 (75)
Charge for the year (7
Disposals 18
At 31 July 2013 (64}
Net book value
At 31 July 2013 17
Cost
At 1 August 2011 79
Additions 8
At 31 July 2012 87
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2011 (63)
Charge for the year (12}
At 31 July 2012 {75)
Net book value
At 31 July 2012 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2013

14 Intangible assets

IP rights and
patent/icences
£000
Cost
At 1 August 2012 19,893
Disposals (23}
At 31 July 2013 19,870
Accumulated amtortisation
At 1 August 2012 (10,447)
Amortisation charge (1,988)
Disposals 13
At 31 July 2013 (12,422)
Net book value
At 31 July 2013 7.448
Cost
At 1 August 2011 19,893
At 31 July 2012 19,893
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2011 (8,451)
Amortisation charge (1,596)
At 31 July 2012 (10,447)
Net book value
At 31 July 2012 9,446

Recoverable amount of The University of Sheffield and Cardiff University IP pipeline nights
The following key vanables are relevant in determining a recoverable amount for the |P pipeline nghts

» the timing and number of spin-out companies from both universities,

» dilution of percentage shareholding rates as a result of financing related spin-out companies in the future,
s disposal values and tmings, and

» discount factors of 6-8% (2012 6-8%)

Each year the Directors review the 1P pipeline rights for any evidence of impairment This review 18 based on a discounted cash
flow model which looks at histonc information based on the key variables noted above and projecs forwards over the remaining
hife of the IP pipeline nghts and through to the exit of the spin-out companies Based on the review this year, the Directors believe
that there 1s no imparment of the IP nghts and that the most appropriate treatment 1s for the IP nights to be amortised over the
ten-year life of the agreement with provision made for any impairment when required, consistent with the treatment in the prior
year The carrying value of the Cardiff University IF nights amounted to £5,492,000 (2012 £7,086,000) The carrying value of The
University of Sheffield IP nghts amounted to £1,956,000 (2012 £2,348,000)
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15 {nvestments

Spin-out
companies Loans Total

£000 £000 £000
Fair value
At 1 August 2012 18,930 833 19,763
Additions 1,858 757 2,615
Transiers 64 1,433 1,497
Change in fair value in the year 1,962 (854) 1,108
At 31 July 2013 22,814 2,169 24,983
Change in fair value in the year
Fair value gains 2,727 - 2,727
Farr value losses (765) (854) {1,619)

1,962 (854) 1,108
Fair value
At 1 August 2011 15,053 1,715 16,768
Additions 2,058 827 2,885
Disposals (3,457) - (3,457)
Transfers 1,371 (1,371) -
Change in fair value in the year 3,905 (338} 3,567
At 31 July 2012 18,930 833 19,763
Change in fair value in the year
Fair value gains 4,178 - 4178
Fair value losses (273) (338) 611)

3,905 (338) 3,567

The total farr value of tnvestments of £24,983,000 (2012 £19,763,000) has been determined using twa valuation methods

» Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets —£24,203,000(2012 £19,252,000)
e Level 3 — inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data - £780,000 (2012 £511,000)

Falr values relating to unguated equity Investments classified as Level 3 have been determined in part or in full by a valuatien
method that 1s not supported by observable market prices or rates Investments in 12L Research Limited and 12L Research
USA, Inc have been classified as Level 3 and the indidual valuations have been calculated using price-earmnings multiples

The increase shown from 2012 to date relates to an uphft based on the year-end price-earnings multiple calculation

During the year both Absynth Biologics and FaultCurrent deconsolidated, whereby the Group's holdings 1n both these companies

dropped below 50% following third party investment This has led
{2012 £459,000), and at the year end carrying values for these comp

on disposal were mainly made on the sale of the Group’s investment tn Simcyp Limited

to gans on disposal of subsidiaries/investments £1,368,000
anies (including loans held) total £1,380,000 In 2012 gains
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined

for the year ended 31 July 2013

15 Investments continued

At 31 July 2013, the Group had investments where 1t holds 20% or more of the issued share capital as follows

Class of

Prnincipal activity Holding shares held

Progenteg Limited Cartilage replacement therapies 48% Ordinary
Demasqg Limited Bone and soft tissue iImaging products 48% Ordinary
FauitCurrent Limited Fault current imiters 47% Ordinary
Mesuro Limited Radio frequency design and test instrumentation 47% Ordinary
Asalus Medical Instruments Limited Medical devices 44% Ordinary & Preference
Absynth Biologics Linuted MRSA vaccines 43% Ordinary & A Ordinary
Adjuvantix Limited Vaccine adjuvants 43% Ordinary
Dwrnal Limited Hormone replacement 43% Ordinary
Seren Photonics Limited High Brightness LEDs 40% Ordinary & A Ordinary
Iterate Control Limited Advance control testing software 40% Ordinary
Magnomatics Limited Magnetic devices 39% Ordinary & A Crdinary
Medaphor Limited Medical training solutions 39% Ordinary
Asterion Limited Cytokine therapies 38% Ordinary
Phase Focus Limited Lensless microscopy 35% Ordinary
Perlemax Limited Industrial gas processes 35% Ordinary
Art of Xen Limited Medical use of xenon gas 32% Preference
12L Research Limited Pesticide testing 31% A & B Ordinary
2L Research USA, Inc Peshicide testing 31% Ordinary
Nanotether Discovery Science Limited Drug discovery technology 22% Ordinary

At 31 July 2013, the Group had nvestments where it holds 20% or less of the issued share capital as follows

Class of

Principal activity Holding shares held

Simm Investments Limited investment company 20% B Ordinary
Muscagen Limited Drug discovery 13% A4 Ordinary
Morvus Technology Limited Oncology theraples 9% Ordinary
Zilico Limited Cervical cancer detection 5% Ordinary & C Ordinary
Sarum Biosciences Limited Antibactenal treatments 2% Ordinary
Q Chip Limited Life science and therapeutic products 1% A Ordinary

All companies are incorporated in England and Wales except for 12L Research USA, Inc which 1s incorporated in USA



16 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Trade receivables 5 8
Amounts due from related parbies b4 171
Other tax and social secunty 29 33
Other recevables 655 573
Payments on account 82 132
Prepayments and accrued mncome 104 138
929 1,055

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates therr fair value

Other recevables mainly represents an amount due in respect of the sale of Simcyp - £573,000 1s held in escrow for two years as
securty for certain warranty and indemnity cover This amount is due early 2014

The amounts due from related parties are detalled in note 24

Payments on account represent the transfer of funds n advance to The University of Sheffield, details of which are set out in the
accounting policy for “payments on account”

Credit nsk

The Directors believe that given the majonity of trade and other recewvables are with related parties {(primanily pubhc sector
organisations) there Is little nsk to credit quality

Ageing of trade receivables
No trade receivables are past their due date and no iImpawrment provision was considered necessary in the current or preceding years

17 Deposits and cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
£000 £000
Deposits - 2,000

Deposits comprise treasury deposits held by the Group with an ongnal maturity of greater than three months The carrying amount
of these assets approximates their farr value

2013 2012
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 21,288 3,923

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original matunty of three
months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value
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18. Share capital and premium

2013 2012
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully pad
109,437,096 (2012 72,832,850) Ordinary shares of 1p each 1,094 728
Share premium 63,529 44 486

The Company has one class of Ordinary shares which carry equal voting rights, equal rights to income and distribution of assets
on liquidation or otherwise and no right to fixed income

On 11 Apnl 2013, following the successful completion of a Placing for new shares, the Company 1ssued 36,499,246 Ordinary
shares of 1p each Of the total number of shares, 3,045,000 shares were ssued to [P Group plc and 33,318,637 shares were
issued to new and existing institutional shareholders, the consideration from these shares amounted to £20,000,000 less share
1ssue costs of £748,000 The share issue costs represent legal and brokerage fees incurred on the transaction and have been
charged io the share premium account The remamning 135,609 shares were 1ssued to The University of Sheffield to satisfy a

pre-existing pipeline agreement and therefore had no consideration As a resuit of this transaction IP Group plc hold 20% of
the Company

The new shares 1ssued represented 50% of the Company’s then existing share capital and following the issue represents 33% of
the Company's enlarged 1ssued share capital

Additionally dunng the year, on the exercise of share options, the Company i1ssued a further 105,000 Ordinary shares of 1p each,
the total consideration for these shares amounted to £35,000 Details of the share options are given in note 3

19 Other reserves

The Other reserves totalhing £3,000 (2012 £125,000) comprise a capital redemption reserve of £1,000 (2012 £1,000) and a
capital reserve of £2,000 (2012 £2,000) ansing from the Company’s admission to AIM in 2005 and the resuling differences on
consolidation under merger accounting The additional £122,000 in 2012 represented the 135,609 shares still to be issued In
respect of the extended pipeline agreement with The University of Sheffield, these have now been 1ssued, see note 18

20 Non-controlling interests

2013 2012

£000 £000

At 1 August - -
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings 534 -
Part disposal of subsidiary undertakings - (38)
Share of loss in year (245) (164)
Non-controlling interests attnbutable to Group (289) 202
At 31 July - -

The disposal of subsidiary undertakings reflects the deconsolidation impact of Absynth Biologics Limited and FaultCurrent Limited
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21 Non-current habilities

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts owed to The University of Sheffield 769 811
Amounts owed to Cardiff University 1,585 1,526
Amounts owed fo related parties 2,354 2,337

£769,000 owed to The Unwersity of Sheffield (2012 £751,000) and £1,585,000 owed to Cardiff University (2012 £1,526,000)
relate to loan notes and accrued interest ansing from the purchase of the Group's interest in its partfolio of spin-out companies
These amounts are repayable on the earlier of the sale by Fusion of the underlying share capital in the company, or the company
making dividend payments, or ten years from the day of 1ssue These amounts are only payable to the extent that any gain or
dividend 1s recewved by Fusion and can be cancelled by Fusion by the return of the shares to which they relate to The University
of Sheffield or Cardiff University respectively The additional £60,000 owed to The University of Sheffield in 2012 related to a loan
with Absynth Biologics Limited, a previously consolidated subsidiary spin-out company

Maturity analysis

Due to the repayment terms described abave, the date of maturity of these loans 1s uncertain

22 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Trade creditors 104 71
Amounts due to related parties 13 71
Other creditors 5 6
Other tax and social secunty - 1
Accruals and deferred income 8l 222
203 371
23 Operating lease commitments

2013 2012
£000 £000

Minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases on property expinng
— no later than one year 15 -
— later than one year and no later than five years - 25
15 25

The lease payments represent amounts payable by the Group for tts office requirements in the UK
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24 Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with varous related parties All transactions were conducted on
terms prevalling in an arms length transaction

Under the terms of the agreement dated January 2009 Fusion IP Sheffield Lunited paid The University of Sheffield £96,250
(2012 £105,000), as payments to support the management of the IP pipeline

During the year, as part of the April 2013 funding round, the remaining 135,609 shares required to satisfy a pre-existing pipeline
agreement were 1ssued to The University of Sheffield for no consideration, see note 18

Fusion has continued to accrue interest due on loans in respect of the purchase of the onginal portfolio companies from The
University of Sheffield The total amount due 1s set out in note 21

Fusion P Sheffield Limited purchased IP and made contributions towards patent costs from The University of Sheffield during the
year with a total value of £39,520 (2012 £92,767)

Fusian IP Sheffield Limited icurred costs of £26,448 (2012 £26,124) under a secondment agreement with The University of
Sheffield for services from personnel

Fusion 1P Sheffield Lirmited incurred costs in respect of leased office premises and related expenses from The University of
Sheffield £21,060 (2012 £19,902)

At 31 July 2013 the total balance due to The Unwersity of Sheffield n respect of the above transactions was £10,172 (2012 £16,428)

Fusion IP Sheffield Limited recewved licence income via The University of Sheffield for the year of £53,828 (2012 £35,114) with
balance owed to Fusion from the University at 31 July 2013 of £164 (2012 £nil}

During the year, the Group purchased administrative and other services from Sheffield University Enterprises Limited (SUEL), a
whally owned subsidiary of The University of Sheffield, totalling £32,118 (2012 £31,470) At 31 July 2013 the balance due to SUEL
was £2,408 (2012 £3,459)

Under the terms of the agreement dated January 2007 Fusion IP Cardiff Limited paid Cardiff University £2 10,000 (2012 £210,000)
as payments to support the management of the IP pipeline

Fuston has continued to accrue interest due on loans n respect of the purchase of the cnginal portfolio comparues from Cardiff
Unwersity and during the year, under the same terms as the onginal agreement, an additional loan of £22,301 was added n
exchange for shares in Sarum Biosciences Limited The total amounts due are set out in note 21

Fusion P Cardiff Limited made payments of £7,321 (2012 £nil} to Asalus Medical instruments Limited, a participating interest, 1IN
respect of the Cardiff office space

During the year whilst a subsidiary company, Absynth Biologics Limited, increased therr loan from The University of Sheffield to
£140,000 (2012 £60,000) Absynth Biologics Limited deconsclidated on 10 July 2013 and therefore no balances are ncluded as
at 31 July 2013 (2012 £60,212} Interest to the point of decensolidation of £3,936 (2012 £425) 1s included in finance expenses

Durning the year, Fusion supplied management services to companies in which it held a participatng interest totalling £310,756
(2012 £375,737) At 31 July 2013 the amount owed to Fusion was £54,062 (2012 £171,134)

Dunng the year, companies 1n which Fusion held an interest contracted for £644,528 (2012 £725,565) of research services
combined from The University of Sheffield and Cardiff University At 31 July 2013 the combined amount owed to the Universities
for these contracted research services was £47,353 (2012 £198,853 which includes a consolidated balance of £50911)

During the year, IP Group plc invested £1,220,821 (2012 £948,777) m companies In which Fusion held a participating interest
As part of the April 2013 fundraising IP Group purchased a further 3,045,000 shares in Fusion, see note 18

During the year, directors of Fusion invested £5,000 (2012 £nil) in companies in which Fusion held a parhicipating interest




Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 July 2013

2013 2012
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 3 14 11
Investments 4 1 1
15 12
Current assets
Debtors 5 45,275 41,436
Cash at bank and in hand 19,214 3,790
654,489 45,226
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 (56) (77)
Net current assets 64,433 45,149
Net assets 64,448 45,161
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 7 1,094 728
Share premium 7 63,529 44,486
Other reserves 7 1 123
Retained deficnt 7 (176) (176)
Equity shareholders’ funds 64,448 45,161

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 October 2013 and were signed on its behalf by
the Chairman
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2013

1 Accounting policies

The Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conveniion tn accordance with applicable
UK Accounting Standards and the Companies Act 2006 A summary of the Company accounting policies, which have been
consistently applied throughout the year, are set out below

Tangible assets

All tangible assets are shown at cost less depreciation and imparment Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost, less the
estimated residual value by equal instalments over the estimated useful economic lives as follows

Computerfoffice equipment — 3 to 4 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at historic cost less any provision for impairment in value

Fixed asset investments
Uniisted investments are held at historic cost less any proviston for impairment in value

Loans to subsidiary undertakings

All iInter-company loans are initially recogmsed at cost As all inter-company loans are repayable on demand, their carrying value
approximates to therr fair value

Cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption v FRS 1 “Cash Flow Statements”, which provides that where a company 1s
a member of a group and a consohdated cash flow statement 1s published, the company does not have to present an indmdual
cash flow statement

2. Results for the Parent Company

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
presented a profit and loss account for the Parent Company The Parent Comparny's result for the year was a profit of £nil
(2012 £16,000) after recharges

Details of the auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements

Full details of Directors' remuneration and employee information can be found In the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration on
pages 14 to 16

3 Tangible assets
Computer and office equipment

2013 2012
£000 £000

Cost
At 1 August 48 40
Addions 8 8 |
Disposals - - !
At 31 July 56 48
Depreciation
At 1 August (37) (29)
Charge for year {5} &)
Disposals - -
At 31 July 42) (37)
Net Book Value 14 11
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4 Investments

2013 2012
£000 £000
Investments in subsichary undertakings 1 1
Details of the subsidiary undertakings at 31 July 2013 are as follows
Class of
Principal activity Holding shares held
Fusion IP Sheffield Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
Fuston |P Cardiff Limsted Holding company 100% Ordinary
All companies are incorporated in Engtand and Wales
5 Debtors
2013 2012
£000 £000
Prepayments and accrued income 58 31
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 45,217 41,405
45,275 41,436

Loans to subsidiary undertakings represent amounts advanced to Fusion [P Sheffield Limited and Fusion IP Cardiff Lirited n
respect of the IP pipeline agreements with The Uruversity of Sheffield and Cardiff University respectively No interest has been
charged on these loans and there 15 no fixed repayment term

6 Creditors — amounts faling due within one year

2013 2012

£000 £000

Accruals and deferred income 56 77
7 Share capital and reserves

Share Share Other Retained

capital premium reserves deficit Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 August 2012 728 44,486 123 (176) 45,161

1ssue of share capital 366 18,996 (75) - 19,287

Movement in shares to be 1ssued - 47 (47} - =

At 31 July 2013 1094 63,529 1 (176) 64,448

Details of the Company’s allotted share capital can be found i note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

Other reserves relate to a capital redemption reserve of £1,000 (2012 £1,000) and shares to be 1ssued £l (2012 £122,000)
In 2012 shares to be 1ssued represented 135,609 shares n respect of the extended pipeline agreement with The University of
Shetheld, these have now been 1ssued as part of the fundraising in April 2013 see note 18 in the consohdated notes

8 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption granted by paragraph 3b of FRS8, notto disclose transactions and balances

with other Group companies
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Fusion IP plc (the “Company™) will be held at the offices of Ashurst LLP,
Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London EC2A 2HA on 29 November 2013 at 10 30 am to consider and, if thought fif, pass the
following resolutions It 1s intended to propose Resolution 5 as a special resolution and all other resolutions as ardinary resolutions
Voting on all resolutions will be on a show of hands unless a polt 1s validly demanded

1

To recewe the accounts including the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration for the financial year ended 31 July 2013,
together with the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon (Resolution 1}

To appont KPMG LLP as auditors of the Company as a replacement for KPMG Audit Pic (Resolution 2)
To authonse the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditors (Resolution 3)

That, in substitution for all previously granted but unutiised authonties, the Directors be generally and unconditionally
authonised for the purposes of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”}, to exercise all the powers of the Company
to allot shares and grant nghts ta subscribe for, or convert any secunty into shares

(8) up to an aggregate nominal amount {(within the meaning of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £364,790 (such amount
to be reduced by the nominal amount allotted or granted under (b) below In excess of such sum), and

(b) compnsing equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) up o an aggregate nominal amount {within the meaning
of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £729,580 (such amount to be reduced by any aflotments of grants made under
(a) above) 1n connection with or pursuant to an offer or invitation by way of a nights 1ssue in favour of holders of ordinary
shares in proportion (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by them on the record
date for such allotment (and holders of any other class of equity securities entitled to participate therein or if the Directors
consider it necessary, as permitted by the nghts of those secunities), but subject to such exclusions of other arrangements
as the Directors may consider necessary or appropriate to deal with fractional entitlements, treasury shares, record dates
or legal, regulatory or practical difficulties which may anise under the laws of, or the reguirements of, any regulatory body
or stock exchange in any terntory or any other matter whatsoever,

these authorisations to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (save that the Company may
before such expiry make any offer or agreement that would or might reguire shares to be allotted, or rights to be granted, after
such expiry and the Directors may allot shares, or grant nghts to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares, in pursuance
of any such offer or agreement as 1f the authonsations conferred hereby had not expired} {Resolution 4)

That subject to the passing of Resalution 4 set out above, the Directors be given power pursuant to sections 570 and 573
of the Act to

{a} allot equity securities (as defined 1n section 560 of the Act) of the Company for cash pursuant to the authonsations
conferred by Resolution 4,

(b} sell ordinary shares (as defined In section 560(1) of the Act) held by the Company as treasury shares for cash, and

(c) allot up to 3,675,000 crdinary shares in the capital of the Company in connection with any exercise of warrants created
by the Company pursuant to a deed between the Company and NPI Ventures Limited and dated 23 March 2006 (the
“Warrant Deed™),

as If section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that this power shall be hmited to the allotment
of equity secunities for cash and the sale of treasury shares

() 1 connection with or pursuant to an effer or Imatation (but in the case of the authonsation granted under Resolution
4{b) above, by way of a rights 1ssue only) in favour of holders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as practicable)
to the respective number of ordinary shares held by them on the record date for such allotment or sale (and holders
of any other class of equity secunties entitted to participate therein or if the Dwectors consider it necessary, as
permutted by the nights of those secunties) but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may consider necessary or appropriate ta deal with fractional entittements, treasury shares, record dates or legal
regulatory or practical difficutties which may anse under the laws of or the requirements of any regulatory body or
stock exchange in any territory or any other matter whatsoever,

() connection with the allotment of up to 3,675,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to any
exercise of warranis created by the Warrant Deed, and

() 1 the case of the authorisation granted under Resolution 4{a} above (or 1n the case of any transfer of treasury shares),
and otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (1) of this resotubon, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £54,718 55,



and shall expire at the conclusion af the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, save that the Company may before such
expiry make any offer ar agreement that would or might require equity securiies to be allotted, or treasury shares to be soid, after
such expiry and the Directors may allot equity secunibies, or sell treasury shares, In pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if
the power conferred hereby had not expired (Resolution 5)

In accordance with article 106 of the Company's articles of association

& Tore-elect Mr D Liversidge, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 6)
7  To re-elect Mr D Baynes, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 7)

& To re-elect Dr P Grant, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 8}

9 Tore-elect Mr § Galt, who retires by ratation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 9)

10 To re-elect Mr D Catton, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Cornpany {Resolution 10)
11 To re-elect Mr M Davies, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 11)
12 To re-elect Dr A Fielding, who retires by rotabion as a Director of the Company (Resolution 12}

By order of the Board

Richard Birtles Repistered Office
Company Secretary The Sheffield Bioincubator
14 October 2013 40 Leavygreave Road
Registered in England and Wales number 5275732 Sheffield 83 7RD
Notes

1 Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Cornpany spectfies that in order to have the
nght to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and also for the purpase of determining how many votes a person
entitled to attend and vote may cast), a person must be entered on the register of members of the Company at Bpm on27
Novemnber 2013 or, in the event of any adjournment, at 6 00 prm on the date which 1s two working days before the adjourned
meeting Changes to entries on the register of members after this ime shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any
person to attend or vote at the meeting

2 A member is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of his or her rights to attend, to speak and
to vote at the Annual General Meeting A member may appotnt more than ane proxy 1n relation to the meeting, provided that
each proxy Is appornted to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by lum or her A proxy need not be
a member of the Company A form of proxy for the meeting i1s enclosed

3 To be valid any form of proxy or other instrument appointing a proxy must be recewved by post or by hand (during normal
business hours only) by our registrar Capita Asset Services at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU by
no later than 10 302 m on 27 November 2013 {or, if the meeting 1s adjourned, 48 hours before the tme fixed for the meeting,
excluding non-working days)

4  Any corporation which 1s @ member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all
of its powers as a member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares

5  Copies of service agreements under which Directors of the Company are employed, and copres of the terms and condihions of
appointment of Non-executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office durning normal business
hours from the date of this notice until the date of the Annual General Meeting and will be available for mspection at the place
of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and dunng the meeting

6 You may not use any electronic address twithin the meaning of sechon 333(4) of the Companies Act 2006) provided n this
notice of Annual General Meeting {or in any related documents including the proxy form) to communicate with the Company
for any purposes other than those expressly stated
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Explanatory Notes to the Resolutions to be proposed at the 2013 Annual General Meeting
Resolution 1 — Report and Accounts

The Directors will present the audited financal statements of the Company for the year ended 31 July 2013 together with the
Directors’ Repart and Auditors’ Report on those financial statements

Reselution 2 — Change of Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc have notified the Company that they are not seeking reaapointment following their intention to gradually wind down
the registered firm It1s proposed that KPMG LLP be and are hereby appointed auditors of the Company which will hold office from
the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which the accounts are laid before the Company

Resolution 3 - Foang of Auditors’ Remuneration
The resolubon proposes that the Directors be authonsed to set the fees of the auditors

Resolution 4 — Authornity to Allot Shares

The Directors may ailot shares and grant nights to subscribe for, or convert any secunty into, shares only If authonised to do so
by shareholders Accordingly, Resolution 4 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to grant new authorities to allot shares and
grant rights to subscribe for, and convert any securities into, shares If given, these authorities will expire at the conctuston of the
Company's Annual General Meeting in 2014

Paragraph (a) of Resolution 4 will allow the Directors to allot ordinary shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £364,790,
representing approximately one third (33 33 per cent) of the Company's ewsting issued share capital and calcutated as at
1 October 2013 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this notice) In accordance with the latest issued mstitutional
guidehnes, paragraph (b} of Resolution 4 will allow the Directors to allot, including the ordinary shares referred to in paragraph {a)
of Resolution 4, further ordinary shares In connection with a pre-emptive offer by way of a rights 1ssue to ordinary shareholders up
to a maximum nominal amount of £729,580, representing approximately two thirds (66 67 per cent) of the Company's existing
Issuied share capital calculated as at 1 October 2013

As at the date of this notice the Company holds no treasury shares

Resolution 5 — Authority to Allot Shares for Cash

The Directors also require a power from shareholders to allot equity securibes or sell treasury shares where they propose to do so for
cash and otherwise than to existing shareholders pro rata to therr holdings Resolution 5 will be proposed as a special reselution to
grant such a power Apart from offers or invitations in proportion to the respective number of shares held, the power will be imited
to the allotment of equity securities and sales of treasury shares for cash up to an aggregate nominal value of £54,718 55 (being five
per cent of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital at 1 Cctober 2013, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this
notice) If given, this power will expure at the conclusion of the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2014

Resolution 6 to 12 — To Re-elect Directors
The resolutions propose to re-elect the current directors who are required to retire by rotation this year




Form of Proxy

Before completing this form, please read the explanatory notes below

IfWe (name(s) in fulf}

of (address{es))

being (a) member{s) of the Company, hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or the following person

*

Please leave this box blank + you have selected the Charman See note 3 Do not insert your own name(s)

as myfour proxy to exercise all or any of my/our nights to attend, speak and vote In respect of myfour voting entitlement* on myfour
behalf as directed below at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the offices of Ashurst LLP, Broadwalk House,
5 Appold Street, London EC2A 2HA on 29 November 2013 at 1030 am and at any adjournment thereof

Please tick here If this proxy appointment 1s one of multiple appaintments being made *
*Far the appointment of more than one proxy, please refer to note 4

Please indicate 1n the boxes below how you wish your votes to be cast
Vote
For Against  Withheld

Resolution 1  To recewve the accounts and reports of the Directors
and auditars for the year ended 31 July 2013

Resolution 2:  To appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of the Company
as replacement for KPMG Audit Plc

Resolution 3 To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditors

Resolution 4  To gwve the Directors the autharity to allot shares
pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

Resolution 5 To give the Directors the authonty to disapply pre-emption rights
pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Companies Act 2006

Resolution 6  To re-elect Mr D Liversidge
Resolution 7 To re-elect Mr D Baynes
Resolution 8  Tp re-elect Dr P Grant
Resolution @ To re-elect Mr S Gall

Resolution 10 To re-elect Mr D Catton

Resolution 11 Tp re-elect Mr M Daves

Resolution 12 Top re-elect Dr A Fielding

1/We would like my/our proxy to vote on the resclutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting as indicated on this form Unless
otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote or abstain as he or she sees fit In relation to any business of the meeting

Signature Date
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Form of Proxy continued

Notes to the form of proxy

1

10

52

As a member of the Company you are entitied to appomnt a proxy to exercise all or any of your nights to attend, speak and
vote at a general meeting of the Company You can only appoint @ proxy using the procedures set out in these notes |f the
proxy Is being appointed In relation to less than your full voting entittement, please enter in the box next to the proxy hotder's
name, the number of shares in relation to which they are authonsed to act as your proxy If this box 15 feft blank, your proxy
will be deemed to be authonised in respect of your full voting entittement {or if this proxy form has been 1ssued in respect of a
designated account for a shareholder, the full voting entitiement for that designated account)

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person If you have appointed a proxy
and attend the meeting in person, your proxy appointment will automatically be terminated

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to representyou To appoint as your proxy
a person other than the Chairman of the meeting, delete the words “the Chairman of the meeting or” and insert the name(s)
of the person or persons appointed as proxy/proxies in the space provided If you sign and return this form of proxy with no
name inserted in the space provided, the Chairman of the meeting will be deemed to be your proxy Where you appoint as
your proxy someone other than the Chairman, you are responsible for ensuring that they attend the meeting and are aware of
your voting intentions  |f you wish your proxy te make any comments on your behalf, you will need to appoint someone other
than the Chawrman and give them the relevant instructions directly

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy 15 appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares
You may not appont more than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share If you wish to appoint more than
ane proxy using this form, please photocopy this form or contact Capita Asset Services for further forms of proxy When you
submit the form of proxy, please indicate on each copy the name of the proxy and the number of shares in respect of which
the proxy 1s appointed Please also indicate by ticking the box provided if the proxy 15 one of multiple instructions being given
All forms of proxy must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelope You should send all proxies to Capita
Asset Services at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU

To direct your proxy how to vote on the resolutions, mark the appropriate box with an “X" To abstain from voting on a
resolution, select the relevant “Vote withheld” box A vote withheld is not a vote m law, which means that the vote will not be
caunted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution If no vohing indication 1s given, your proxy will vote or abstain
from voting at his or her discretion Your proxy will vote {or abstamn from votng) as he or she thinks fit i relabon to any other
matter which 1s put before the meeting

To appoint a proxy using this form, this form must be

completed and signed, sent or delivered to Capita Asset Services at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, and

receved by Capita Asset Services no later than 1030 am on 27 November 2013 (or, in the case of an adjourned
meeting, 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, excluding non-working days)

In the case of a member which 1s a company, this proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on
its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company

Any power of attorney or any other authority under which this proxy form 1s signed {or duly certified copy of such power
or authority) must be included with the proxy form

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a praxy, only the appointment
submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted Senionty 1s determined by the order in whuch the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company's register of members in respect of the jont holding (the first-named being the most senior}

if you submit more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the latest time for the receipt
of proxies will take precedence
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